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 ASSETS Notes 

Group 
at 31 

December 
2012 

 

Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 

December 
2011 

(restated) 

 Company 
at 31 

December 
2011 

(restated)  

Group 
at 31 

December 
 2010 

(restated) 

 Company 
at 31  

December  
2010  

(restated) 
             
Non-current assets             

Intangible assets 4 58,541  56,060  39,735  36,345  37,911  37,811 

Property, plant and equipment 5 3,198,591  3,146,388  3,114,410  3,054,247  2,876,969  2,853,343 

Prepayments for property, plant, equipment  14  14  2,769  2,769  43,737  43,737 

Investment property 6 800  -  1,824  1,824  1,852  1,852 

Investments in subsidiaries 7 -  54,651  -  54,651  -  23,897 

Investments in associates and jodint ventures 7 153,496  155,427  146,966  151,648  162,719  160,836 

Deferred income tax assets 23 622  -  81  -  1,200  - 

Other non-current assets 8 23,723  23,723  9,657  9,657  18,547  18,547 

Accounts receivable 11 10,927  10,927  1,426  1,426  1,797  8,297 

Other financial assets  -  -  -  -  875  875 

Total non-current assets  3,446,714  3,447,190  3,316,868  3,312,567  3,145,607  3,149,195 

             
Current assets             

Inventories 9 63,636  61,427  125,537  123,721  127,908  126,209 

Prepayments  2,348  1,489  2,936  1,909  13,108  12,051 

Trade receivables 10 288,855  253,916  233,479  207,498  179,061  154,400 

Otheraccounts receivable 11 23,793  23,549  7,007  12,648  20,941  20,127 

Prepaid income tax  4,262  4,148  3,157  3,147  8,383  8,383 

Other financial assets  20  -  267  -  243  - 

Cash and cash equivalents 12 34,345  8,157  27,907  8,281  86,925  83,375 

  417,259  352,686  400,290  357,204  436,569  404,545 

Non-current assets classifiedas held for sale 13 603  -  3,283  1,543  4,166  1,543 

Total current assets  417,862  352,686  403,573  358,747  440,735  406,088 

             

TOTAL ASSETS  3,864,576  3,799,876  3,720,441  3,671,314  3,586,342  3,555,283 

 
 

(Continued on the next page) 
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Notes 

Group 
at 31 

December 
2012 

 

Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 

December 
2011 

(restated) 

 Company 
at 31 

December 
2011 

(restated)  

Group 
at 31 

December 
 2010 

(restated) 

 Company 
at 31  

December  
2010  

(restated) 
             

Capital and reserves             

Share capital 14 635,084  635,084  635,084  635,084  635,084  635,084 

Share premium 14 295,767  295,767  295,767  295,767  295,767  295,767 

Revaluation reserve 15 12,055  7,774  13,735  8,395  8,583  6,604 

Legal reserve 16 36,145  35,867  35,972  35,867  35,867  35,867 

Other reserves 17 717,775  717,775  717,775  717,775  717,775  717,775 

Retained earnings (deficit)  (30,037)  (10,572)  (67,183)  (44,656)  35,107  33,174 

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company  1,666,789  1,681,695  1,631,150  1,648,232  1,728,183  1,724,271 

Non-controlling interest  41,498  -  39,951  -   -  - 

Total equity  1,708,287  1,681,695  1,671,101  1,648,232  1,728,183  1,724,271 

             
Non-current liabilities             

Borrowings 19 552,370  544,098  247,006  247,006  94,018  94,018 

Finance lease liabilities 20 44  -  319  -  851  - 

Grants 21 1,100,461  1,100,461  1,008,569  1,008,569  872,957  872,957 

Provisions for emission allowances  -  -  -  -  15,907  15,907 

Other non-current accounts payable and liabilities 22 34,397  32,403  46,137  45,863  56,476  56,476 

Deferred income tax liabilities 23 128,983  128,815  125,431  124,311  129,684  126,969 

Total non-current liabilities  1,816,255  1,805,777  1,427,462  1,425,749  1,169,893  1,166,327 
             

Current liabilities             

Borrowings 19 126,409  116,492  395,160  393,991  454,508  440,974 

Finance lease liabilities 20 327  -  584  -  511  - 

Trade payables 24 138,558  128,130  116,830  103,759  138,274  133,689 

Advance amounts received 25 15,995  15,035  17,628  14,885  3,883  3,845 

Income tax payable  545  -  1,787  -  1,405  490 

Provisions for emission allowances 26 13,915  13,915  61,931  61,931  67,282  67,282 

Other accounts payable and liabilities 27 44,285  38,832  27,958  22,767  22,403  18,405 

Other current liabilities  340,034  312,404  621,878  597,333  688,266  664,685 

Total liabilities  2,156,289  2,118,181  2,049,340  2,023,082  1,858,159  1,831,012 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  3,864,576  3,799,876  3,720,441  3,671,314  3,586,342  3,555,283 
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(Continued on the next page) 
 

  

 Notes 
Group 
2012 

 

Company 
2012 

 

Group 
2011  

 

Company 
2011  

         
Revenue         

Sales revenue 28 1,347,634  1,172,696  1,374,155  1,365,573 
Other operating income 30 96,180  3,895  55,352  23,480 

  1,443,814  1,176,591  1,429,507  1,389,053 

Operating expenses         

Purchase of electricity and related services  (665,127)  (494,716)  (707,978)  (707,824) 
Gas and heavy fuel expenses  (463,690)  (463,690)  (452,367)  (452,367) 
Depreciation and amortisation 4,5,6,21 (78,928)  (64,870)  (60,513)  (57,763) 
Wages and salaries and related expenses  (63,733)  (32,417)  (48,554)  (37,029) 
Repair and maintenance expenses  (4,266)  (14,630)  (7,089)  (15,124) 
Expenses of revaluation and provisions for 
emission allowances 4,21,26 (12,113) 

 
(12,113) 

 
(52,288) 

 
(52,288) 

Expenses of provision for onerous contract 26 (12,824)  (12,824)  (16,688)  (16,688) 

Impairment of other non-current assets 8 (606)  (606)  (9,169)  (9,169) 
Inventory write-down income /(expenses)  9 363  363  (1,631)  (1,631) 
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and 
associates 7 - 

 
- 

 
(916) 

 
- 

(Loss) on revaluation and impairment of 
property, plant and equipment / reversal   5 - 

 
- 

 
8,405 

 
(281) 

Other expenses  (87,235)  (29,837)  (67,558)  (23,743) 

  (1,388,159)  (1,125,340)  (1,416,346)  (1,373,907) 

         

OPERATING PROFIT  55,655  51,251  13,161  15,146 

         

Finance income 31 2,236  4,776  1,362  2,358 
Finance costs:         

Share of result of operations of associates 
and joint ventures 7 2,686 

 
- 

 
(6,048) 

 
- 

Other finance (costs) 32 (13,757)  (13,454)  (6,200)  (5,913) 

  (8,835)  (8,678)  (10,886)  (3,555) 

         

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX  46,820  42,573  2,275  11,591 

         

Current income tax expense 23 (6,066)  (4,606)  (5,594)  (3,891) 
Deferred tax income / (expense) 23 (3,107)  (4,504)  4,845  3,056 

  (9,173)  (9,110)  (749)  (835) 

         

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  37,647  33,463  1,526  10,756 
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 Notes 
Group 
2012 

 Company 
2012 

 Group 
2011  

 Company 
2011  

         
         
Other comprehensive income (loss)         
Gain on revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment 5 (619) 

 
- 

 
6,590 

 
2,653 

Deferred income tax related to (gain) on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment and 
impairment of investment property 23 93 

 

-  (989) 

 

(398) 
Gain on revaluation of non-current assets of 
associates, net of deferred income tax  7 65 

 
-  657 

 
- 

Other comprehensive income, net of deferred 
income tax  (461) 

 
-  6,258 

 
2,255 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 
YEAR  37,186  33,463  7,784  13,011 

         

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR         

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:         

Owners of the Company  36,100  33,463  1,526  10,756 

Non-controlling interests  1,547                 -      -  - 

  37,647  33,463  1,526  10,756 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO:     

 
   

Owners of the Company  35,639  33,463  7,784  13,011 

Non-controlling interests  1,547                 -      -   -  

  37,186  33,463  7,784  13,011 

         

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in LTL)  35 0.06    0.00   
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Group 

No-

tes 

Share 

capital  

Share 

premium  

Revalu-

ation 

reserve 

 

Legal 

reserve  

Other 

reserves  

Retained 

earnings 

(deficit)  Total  

Non-contro-

lling interests  Total equity 

                   

Balance at 31 December 2010  635,084  295,767  8,583  35,867  717,775  35,107  1,728,183  -  1,728,183 

                   

                   

      Acquisition of subsidiaries 7 -  -  -  -  -  (5,778)  (5,778)  31,957  26,179 

Decrease in ownership interest in 

subsidiary not resulting in loss of control 

7 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

(7,994) 

 

(7,994) 

 

7,994 

 

- 
 Share of changes of associates and 

joint ventures recognised directly in 

equity 

7 

 -  -  -  -  -  (2,346)  (2,346)  

 

 

-  (2,346) 

     Formation of reserves 16 -  -  -  105  -  (105)  -  -  - 

Depreciation of revaluation reserve 15 -  -  (800)  -  -  800  -  -  - 

Other adjustments      351  -  -  -  351  -  351 

Dividends paid 18 -  -  -  -  -  (89,050)  (89,050)  -  (89,050) 

Comprehensive income  -  -  5,601  -  -  2,183  7,784  -  7,784 

Balance at 31 December 2011  635,084   295,767  13,735   35,972   717,775   (67,183)   1,631,150   39,951   1,671,101 

                   

Depreciation of revaluation reserve 15 -  -  (1,154)  -  -  1,154  -  -  - 

Formation of reserves 16 -  -  -  173  -  (173)  -  -  - 

      Comprehensive income  -  -  (526)  -  -  36,165  35,639  1,547  37,186 

Balance at 31 December 2012  635,084  295,767  12,055  36,145  717,775  (30,037)  1,666,789  41,498  1,708,287 

(Continued on the next page)  
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Company 
Notes 

Share 
capital  

Share 
premium  

Revalua-
tion 

reserve 

 
Legal 

reserve  Other reserves  

Retained 
earnings 
(deficit)  Total equity 

               
Balance at 1 January 2011  635,084  295,767  6,604  35,867  717,775  33,174  1,724,271 

               
               
  Depreciation of revaluation reserve 15 -  -  (464)  -  -  464  - 
  Dividends paid 18 -  -  -  -  -  (89,050)  (89,050) 

     Comprehensive income  -  -  2,255  -  -  10,756  13,011 
Balance at 31 December 2011   

635,084 
 

295,767  8,395 
 

35,867  717,775  (44,656)  1,648,232 

               
  

             
Balance at 1 January 2012  

635,084  295,767  8,395  35,867  717,775  (44,656)  1,648,232 

Depreciation of revaluation reserve 15 -  -  (621)  -  -  621  - 
   Comprehensive income  -  -  -  -  -  33,463  33,463 
Balance at 31 December 2012  635,084  295,767  7,774  35,867  717,775  (10,572)  1,681,695 

(End) 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.  
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Notes 

Group  
At 31 

December 
2012 

 Company 
At 31 

December 
2012 

 Group  
At 31 

December 
2011  

 Company 
At 31 

December 
2011  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 

 Net profit for the year   37,647  33,463  1,525  10,755 

Reversal of non-monetary expenses (income) and 
other adjustments         

Depreciation and amortisation expense 4,5,6 97,488  83,430  72,248  69,498 

Loss on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 5 (619)  -  281  281 

Impairment write-down of inventories / (reversal) 9 (457)  (457)  2,188  1,596 

(Gain) on disposal of investments in subsidiaries and 
associates 30 -  -  -  (21,566) 

Revaluation and provisions for emission allowances   24,937  24,937  52,286  52,286 

Other impairments/(reversals)  5,566  3,445  -  1,403 

Share of (profit) of associates and joint ventures  (2,686)  -  6,048  - 

Income tax expense  6,066  4,606  5,604  3,891 

Change in deferred income tax liability  3,107  4,504  (4,845)  (3,056) 

(Income) from grants  4,21 (18,560)  (18,560)  (1,151)  (1,301) 

(Decrease) in other provisions  20  20  22,160  27,511 

Loss on write-off of non-current assets 5 140  308  767  267 

Elimination of results of financing and investing activities:         

- Interest (income) 31 (550)  (724)  (996)  (988) 

- Interest expense 32 9,148  8,971  3,223  3,078 

- Other finance (income) costs  2,924  431  2,611  1,465 

Changes in working capital      -  - 

(Increase) decrease in trade receivables and other 
accounts receivable  2,338  12,802  (17,097)  (39,276) 

(Increase) decrease in inventories and prepayments   62,611  62,837  14,172  11,034 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and advance 
amounts received  (47,431)  (43,816)  (43,167)  (15,268) 

Income tax (paid)  (6,736)  (5,607)  (9,434)  (8,230) 

Net cash generated from operating activities  174,953  170,590  106,423  93,380 

         

Cash flows from investing activities         
(Purchase) of property, plant and equipment and 

intangible assets   (195,195)  (190,511)  (181,114)  (198,757) 

Disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets  -  -  39,045  39,575 

Loan repayments received  -  6,500  -  - 

Term deposits  247  -  (24)  - 

Grants received  22,015  22,015     

Dividends received  -  3,000  -  774 

Interest received  231  90  955  947 

Net cash (used in) investing activities  (172,702)  (158,906)  (141,138)  (157,461) 

Cash flows from financing activities         

Proceeds from borrowings   11,726  -  138,149  145,436 

Repayments of borrowings  (32,155)  (32,155)  (19,479)  (26,779) 

Finance lease payments  (532)  -  (459)  - 

Interest (paid)  (32,173)  (31,681)  (33,500)  (33,021) 

Dividends (paid out)  (12)  (12)  (89,050)  (89,050) 

Net cash (used in) financing activities  (53,146)  (63,848)  (4,339)  (3,414) 

         

Net increase (decrease) in cash flows  (50,895)  (52,164)  (39,054)  (67,495) 

         

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  21,349  2,893  60,403  70,388 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  (29,546)  (49,271)  21,349  2,893 

         
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.  
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1 General information  
 
Lietuvos Energija AB is a public limited liability company registered in the Republic of Lithuania. Lietuvos Energija AB 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) is a limited liability for-profit corporate entity, registered with the Register of 
Legal Entities managed by a public institution Centre of Registers. The Company’s registration date is 21 July 2011, 
company code 302648707, VAT payer’s code LT100006256115. The Company has been established for an unlimited period. 
The Company’s registered office address: Elektrinės g. 21, LT-26108, Elektrėnai, Lithuania. 

 
Lietuvos Energija AB was established as a result of implementation of the National Energy Strategy, as a result of 
reorganisation by way of merger of the following two public companies: AB Lietuvos Energija, company code 220551550, 
including its branch offices Kruonis Pumped Storage Power Plant, Kaunas Hydro Power Plant, and AB Lietuvos Elektrinė, 
company code 110870933. 
 
AB Lietuvos Energija AB and AB Lietuvos Elektrinė AB were reorganised by way of merger pursuant to paragraph 4 of Article 
2.97 of the Lithuanian Civil Code by merging the companies under reorganisation, which ceased their activities as legal 
entities after the reorganisation, into new company Lietuvos Energija AB, which continues the activities of the reorganised 
companies after the reorganisation and to which all assets, rights and obligations of the companies under reorganisation 
were transferred, i.e. a new legal entity Lietuvos Energija AB was formed which continues its activities on the basis of 
companies which ceased their activities. 

 
The assets, rights and obligations transferred were accounted for under the carrying value method. Assets and liabilities 
were not revalued at their fair values, but instead were recognised at their carrying amounts. The companies were merged 
with effect from 1 September 2010, i.e. the date on which AB Lietuvos Energija acquired control over AB Lietuvos Elektrinė. 
 
The reorganisation was aimed at combining and optimising electricity generation capacities that are under the state‘s 
control by way of establishing a single electricity generation block. As a result, electricity generation activities were singled 
out and concentrated in one company, and electricity generation capacities were reorganised and centralised in order to 
ensure energetic independence of the Republic of Lithuania. 
 
The authorised share capital of Lietuvos Energija AB amounts to LTL 635,083,615 and it is divided into 635,083,615 
ordinary registered shares with par value of LTL 1 each. There were no changes in the Company‘s authorised share capital 
during 2012 and 2011. All the shares issued are fully paid. With effect from 1 September 2011, the shares of Lietuvos 
Energija AB were listed on the Main List of NASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange. As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the 
Company had not acquired its own shares. 
 
In 2012, the Company was engaged in electricity generation, electricity trading and export activities. In addition to these 
principal activities, the Company is free to be engaged in any other business activities not forbidden under the laws and 
stipulated in the Company‘s Articles of Association. 

 
The Company has permits of unlimited validity to engage in electricity generation activities at the Reserve Power Plant and 
Combined Cycle block (kereinafter referred to as the Reserve Power Plant), Kaunas Hydro Power Plant and Kruonis Pumped 
Storage Power Plant, as well as in electricity import and export activities. The Company also holds permits to expand 
electricity generation capacities at the Reserve Power Plant and Kruonis Pumped Storage Power Plant, and certificates 
entitling to engage in maintenance and operation of electric, thermal power, natural gas and oil facilities. On 29 July 2011, 
based on the decision of the National Control Commission for Prices and Energy, Lietuvos Energija AB obtained a licence of 
an independent electricity supplier. The Company’s subsidiary Energijos Tiekimas UAB also holds a licence of an 
independent electricity supplier. 
 
As of the date of preparation of these financial statements, the Company directly participated (had control or significant 
influence) in the management of the following companies: Kauno Energetikos Remontas UAB (Lithuania), Energijos 
Tiekimas UAB (Lithuania), Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB (Lithuania), Nordic Energy Link AS (Estonia), Geoterma 
UAB (Lithuania), NT Valdos UAB (Lithuania). Indirectly, the Company had the majority of votes in Gotlitas UAB (Lithuania) 
through Kauno Energetikos Remontas UAB, and the majority of votes in VŠĮ Respublikinis Energetikų Mokymo Centras 
(Lithuania) through Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB, and exercised significant influence over Enmašas UAB 
(Lithuania). More detailed information about subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and their changes during 2012 is 
disclosed in Note 7. 
 
The consolidated financial statements of Lietuvos Energija AB and its subsidiaries and the stand-alone financial statements 
of Lietuvos Energija AB as a parent company are presented in these financial statements. 
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1 General information (continued) 
 

As at 31 December 2012, the Group comprised Lietuvos Energija AB and the following directly and indirectly controlled 
subsidiaries: 
 

Company 

Company’s 
registered office 

address 

Group‘s 
ownership 

interest  
at 31 

December 
2012  

Subsidiary‘s 
share capital 

at 31 
December 

2012  
 

Profit (loss) 
for 2012  

Equity at 31 
December 2012 Profile of activities 

Kauno Energetikos 
Remontas UAB 

Chemijos g. 17, 
Kaunas, Lithuania 

 
100% 

14,245 679 21,343 Repair of energy 
equipment, 
production of 
metal 
constructions 

Gotlitas UAB 
(controlled through  
Kauno Energetikos 
Remontas UAB) 

R.Kalantos g. 
119, Kaunas, 
Lithuania 

 
100% 

1,100 (115) 1,435 Accommodation 
services, trade 

Energijos Tiekimas 
UAB 

Žvejų g. 14, 
Vilnius, Lithuania 

 
100% 

750 573 7,415 Independent 
electricity supply 

Technologijų ir 
Inovacijų Centras 
UAB* 

Juozapavičiaus g. 
13, Vilnius, 
Lithuania 

 
54.04%  

76,513 3,634 57,163 IT services 

VŠĮ Respublikinis 
Energetikų 
Mokymo Centras 
(controlled through  
Technologijų ir 

Inovacijų Centras 
UAB) 

Jeruzalės g. 21, 
Vilnius, Lithuania 

54.04% 294 (270) (1,406) Professional 
development of 
energy specialists 
and continual 
professional 

training 

 
*On 31 October 2012, Data Logistics Center UAB was reorganised by way of reorganisation defined in paragraph 3 of 
Art.2.97 of the Lithuanian Civil Code. Data Logistics Center UAB was merged with Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB and 
ceased its activities following the reorganisation. The assets, rights and obligations of Data Logistics Center UAB were 
transferred to Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB, which continued its activities following the reorganisation.   
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1 General information (continued) 
 
As at 31 December 2011, the Group comprised Lietuvos Energija AB and the following directly and indirectly controlled 
subsidiaries: 
 

Company 

Company’s 
registered office 

address 

Group‘s 
ownership 

interest  
at 31 

December 
2011  

Subsidiary‘s 
share capital 

at 31 
December 

2011  
 

Profit (loss) 
for 2011  

Equity at 31 
December 2011 Profile of activities 

Kauno Energetikos 
Remontas UAB 

Chemijos g. 17, 
Kaunas, Lithuania 

 
100% 

14,245 1,705 21,190 Repair of energy 
equipment, 
production of 
metal 
constructions 

Gotlitas UAB 
(controlled through  
Kauno Energetikos 
Remontas UAB) 

R.Kalantos g. 
119, Kaunas, 
Lithuania 

 
100% 

1,100 67 1,614 Accommodation 
services, trade 

Energijos Tiekimas 
UAB 

Žvejų g. 14, 
Vilnius, Lithuania 

 
100% 

750 4,901 9,842 Independent 
electricity supply 

Technologijų ir 
Inovacijų Centras 
UAB 

Juozapavičiaus g. 
13, Vilnius, 
Lithuania 

 
54.04%  

76,513 -* 70,669 IT services 

Data Logistics 
Center UAB 
(controlled through  
Technologijų ir 
Inovacijų Centras 

UAB) 

Juozapavičiaus g. 
13, Vilnius, 
Lithuania 

 
 

54.04% 

12,847 4,427 17,392 IT services 

VŠĮ Respublikinis 
Energetikų 
Mokymo Centras 
(controlled through  
Technologijų ir 
Inovacijų Centras 
UAB) 

Jeruzalės g. 21, 
Vilnius, Lithuania 

 
 

54.04% 

294 -* (1,136) Professional 
development of 
energy specialists 
and continual 
professional 
training  

 
*The Group acquired control over the subsidiaries Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB and VŠĮ Respublikinis Energetikų 
Mokymo Centras with effect from 31 December 2011, therefore, the results of operation of these companies for the year 
2011 were not presented.  
 
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 1,180 (31 December 2011: 1,179) employees. As at 31 December 2012, the 
Company had 511 (31 December 2011: 509) employees. 
 
The Company’s shareholders have a statutory right to approve or not to approve these financial statements and to require 
preparation of a new set of financial statements. 
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2 Accounting policies  
 
Presented below are the principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group’s and the Company’s financial 
statements for the year 2012. 
 
2.1 Basis of preparation 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as 
adopted by the European Union (the “EU”). 

 
These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for property, plant and equipment which is 
recorded at revalued amount, less accumulated depreciation and estimated impairment losses (Note 2.7), emission 
allowances (Note 2.11) and financial instruments measured at fair value (Note 2.12).  
 
The financial year of the Company and other Group companies coincides with the calendar year.   
 
2.2 Changes in accounting policies 
 
Accounting policies applied in preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those of the previous financial year 
except as follows: 
 
Adoption of new and (or) amended IFRS and interpretations of the International Financial Reporting 

Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 
 
 
There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are mandatory for the first time for the annual accounting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2012 that would have a material impact on the Group/Company.    
 
The following new or amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations are effective in 2012 but not relevant to the 
Company and the Group: 
 
Amendments to existing standards and interpretations adopted by the EU that are mandatory for annual accounting periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2012 but not relevant to the Group/Company are as follows:    
 
Disclosures—Transfers of Financial Assets – Amendments to IFRS 7 (effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 July 2012). The amendment requires additional disclosures in respect of risk exposures arising from transferred 
financial assets. The amendment includes a requirement to disclose by class of asset the nature, carrying amount and a 
description of the risks and rewards of financial assets that have been transferred to another party, yet remain on the 
entity's balance sheet. Disclosures are also required to enable a user to understand the amount of any associated liabilities, 
and the relationship between the financial assets and associated liabilities. Where financial assets have been derecognised, 
but the entity is still exposed to certain risks and rewards associated with the transferred asset, additional disclosure is 
required to enable the effects of those risks to be understood. The amendment had no impact on the financial statements of 
the Group/Company. 
 
 
Standards, interpretations and their amendments that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by 
the Company and the Group 
 
IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2014), replaces all of the guidance on control and consolidation in IAS 27 “Consolidated and separate financial statements” 
and SIC-12 “Consolidation - special purpose entities”. IFRS 10 changes the definition of control so that the same criteria are 
applied to all entities to determine control. This definition is supported by extensive application guidance. The 
Group/Company is currently assessing the impact of the new standard on its financial statements. 
 
IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities, (issued in May 2011 and effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2014), applies to entities that have an interest in a subsidiary, a joint arrangement, an 
associate or an unconsolidated structured entity. IFRS 12 sets out the required disclosures for entities reporting under the 
two new standards: IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements, and IFRS 11, Joint arrangements, and replaces the 
disclosure requirements currently found in IAS 28, Investments in associates. IFRS 12 requires entities to disclose 
information that helps financial statement readers to evaluate the nature, risks and financial effects associated with the 
entity’s interests in subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements and unconsolidated structured entities. To meet these 
objectives, the new standard requires disclosures in a number of areas, including significant judgments and assumptions 
made in determining whether an entity controls, jointly controls, or significantly influences its interests in other entities, 
extended disclosures on share of non-controlling interests in group activities and cash flows, summarised financial 
information of subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests, and detailed disclosures of interests in unconsolidated 
structured entities. The Group/Company is currently assessing the impact of the new standard on its financial statements. 
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2 Accounting policies (continued) 

 
 
2.2    Changes in accounting policies (continued) 
 
IFRS 13, Fair value measurement, (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013), aims to 
improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a revised definition of fair value, and a single source of fair value 
measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs. The Group/Company is currently assessing the impact of 
the standard on its financial statements. 

 
IAS 27, Separate Financial Statements, (revised in May 2011 and effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2014), was changed and its objective  is  now to  prescribe  the  accounting  and disclosure  requirements  
for investments  in  subsidiaries,  joint  ventures and associates when an entity prepares separate financial statements. The 
guidance on control and consolidated financial statements was replaced by IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements. The 
Group/Company is currently assessing the impact of the amended standard on its financial statements. 
 
IAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, (revised in May 2011 and effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2014). The  Standard was replaced by IFRS 11 and requires accounting for joint 
ventures and associates using the equity method. The Group/Company does not expect the standard to have any material 
impact on the financial statements.  
 
Amended IAS 19, Employee Benefits (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013), makes 
significant changes to the recognition and measurement of defined benefit pension expense and termination benefits, and to 
the disclosures for all employee benefits.  The standard requires recognition of all changes in the net defined benefit liability 
(asset) when they occur, as follows: (i) service cost and net interest in profit or loss; and (ii) remeasurements in other 

comprehensive income. The Group/Company is currently assessing the impact of the amended standard on its financial 
statements. 
 
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income, amendments to IAS 1 (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2012). The amendments require entities to separate items presented in other 
comprehensive income into two groups, based on whether or not they may be reclassified to profit or loss in the future. The 
suggested title used by IAS 1 has changed to ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’. The 
Group/Company expects the amended standard to change presentation of its financial statements, but have no impact on 
measurement of transactions and balances. 
 
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Amendments to IAS 32 (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2014). The amendment added application guidance to IAS 32 to address 
inconsistencies identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria. This includes clarifying the meaning of ‘currently has a 
legally enforceable right of set-off’ and that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net 
settlement. The Group/Company does not expect the amended standard to have any material impact on the financial 
statements.  
 
Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Amendments to IFRS 7 (effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013). The amendment requires disclosures that will enable users of an 
entity’s financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, including rights of set-off. 
The amendment will have an impact on disclosures but will have no effect on measurement and recognition of financial 
instruments. 
 
There are no other new or amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and that may have a material 
impact for the Group/Company. 
 
 
2.3 Consolidation 
 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include Lietuvos Energija AB and its subsidiaries. The financial 
statements of the subsidiaries have been prepared for the same reporting periods, using uniform accounting policies. 
 
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date from which effective control is transferred to the Company and cease to be 
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group. All intercompany transactions, balances and 
unrealised gains and losses on transactions among the Group companies are eliminated. For the purpose of preparation of 
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, total comprehensive income of subsidiaries was attributed to owners of the 
parent company from the date when effective control was transferred to the Company. 
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2 Accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.4 Business combinations 
 
Acquisition of subsidiaries, except for acquisitions between jointly controlled companies, is accounted for using the 
acquisition method. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets 
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group on the 
date of acquisition. 
 
All acquisition-related costs are expensed when incurred. The acquiree’s identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date. On each acquisition, the Group recognises 
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the 
acquiree's net assets.  
 
IFRS 3, ‘Business combinations' is not applied to business combinations between jointly controlled entities, therefore, such 
business combinations were accounted for using the merger method. The Group did not recognise assets and liabilities at 
their fair values at the acquisition date, instead the Group combined the acquired assets and liabilities at their carrying 
amounts. Under the merger method, no additional goodwill arises and the results of the acquiree have been recognised in 
the consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition. 
 
The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with the equity owners of 
the Group.  For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant 
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to 
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.   
 
2.5 Investments in subsidiaries (the Company) 
 
Subsidiary is an entity directly or indirectly controlled by a parent company and in which a parent company has a 
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. In the parent company’s statement of financial position, 
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment, where the investment’s carrying amount in the parent’s 
statement of financial position exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Cost also includes directly attributable 
expenditure.  
 
2.6 Investments in associates and joint ventures 
 
An associate is an entity over which the Group/Company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint 
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is 
not control or joint control over those policies. Significant influence generally accompanies a shareholding of between 20% 

to 50% of the voting rights. The Group has investment in a joint venture, which is an entity of joint operations, whereby the 
venturers have a contractual arrangement that establishes joint control over the economic activities of the entity. 
 
In the parent company’s statement of financial position investments in associates and joint ventures are stated at cost less 
impairment, where the investment’s carrying amount in the parent’s statement of financial position exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount. 
 
In the consolidated financial statements of the Group, results of operation of associates and joint ventures are accounted at 
equity method, except when the investment is classified as held-for-sale and it is recognised according to IFRS 5 Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued operations. Under the equity method, investments in associates or joint 
ventures are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in 
the Group’s share of the net assets of the investee, less any impairment in the value of individual investments. The Group’s 
share of post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income. 
 
Losses of an associate or joint venture in excess of the Group’s share of assets in that associate/joint ventures are not 
recognised, unless the Group had incurred legal or indirect obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate/joint 
venture. 
 
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of net identifiable assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities of the associate at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the 
carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment. Any excess of the fair value of 
the Group’s share of net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after 
reassessment, is recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 
Where the Group company conducts transactions with an associate/joint venture of the Group, unrealised profits or losses 
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant entity. 
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2 Accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.6   Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued) 
 
Financial guarantees provided for the liabilities of the associates are initially recognised as an investment in associates at 
estimated fair value and as a financial liability in the statement of financial position. The fair value is estimated as the 
difference between the fair value of the liability secured with guarantee and the fair value of analogous liability not secured 
with guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, this financial liability is amortised and recognised as income depending on 
the related amortisation / repayment of the associate’s financial liability to the bank. If there are indications that the 
associate may fail to fulfil its obligations to the bank, a financial liability of the Company is accounted for at the higher of 
amortised value and the value estimated according to IAS 37, ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’.  
 
2.7 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
 
Property, plant, and equipment 
 
Assets with the useful life over one year are classified as property, plant and equipment.  
 
In Property, plant and equipment the categories of assets of hydro power plant, pumped storage power plant and Reserve 
power plant, is accounted for at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Other property, plant and equipment is 
shown at revalued amounts, based on periodic (at least every 5 years) valuations performed by independent valuers, less 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses at the date of revaluation are eliminated against gross carrying amount of the asset and net amount is 
restated to the revalued amount of the assets. Increases in the carrying amount arising on the first revaluation of property, 
plant and equipment are credited to revaluation reserve directly in equity and decreases are recognised in the profit and 
loss account. Increases in the carrying amount arising on the subsequent revaluation of property, plant and equipment are 
credited to revaluation reserve, whereas decreases in the carrying amount that offset previous increases of the same asset 
are charged against revaluation reserve directly in equity; all other decreases are charged to the profit and loss account. 
Revaluation increases in property plant and equipment value that offset previous decreases are taken to the profit and loss 
account. All other increases in the carrying amount arising on subsequent revaluations of property, plant and equipment are 
credited to revaluation reserve. Each year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of 
the asset charged to the statement of comprehensive income and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is 
transferred from revaluation reserve to retained earnings taking into account the effect of deferred income tax. 
 
Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under construction. The cost of such assets includes 
designing, construction works, equipment provided for installation, and other directly attributable costs. 
 

Intangible assets 
 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at acquisition cost. Cost of intangible assets 
acquired through business combinations is its fair value at acquisition date. Intangible assets are recognised if there is 
evidence that the Group/Company will receive economic benefits related to these assets, and its value can be reliably 
estimated.  
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets, except for emission rights (see Note 2.11) are carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any (the Group/Company does not have intangible assets 
with indefinite useful lives).  
 
Depreciation and amortisation 
 
Depreciation (amortisation) of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, except construction in progress, is 
calculated using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of the asset. The estimated useful lives, residual values 
and depreciation/amortisation method are reviewed at each year-end to ensure that they are consistent with the expected 
pattern of economic benefits from these assets. The effect of changes in estimates, if any, is accounted for on a prospective 
basis. As at 31 December 2008, depreciation (amortisation) rates of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
were adjusted in view of the remaining useful lives. In 2012, the depreciation rates were reviewed and adjusted for the 
items of assets included in the category of Other property, plant and equipment belonging to the Reserve Power Plant (note 
3).    
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2 Accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.7  Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (continued) 
 
Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are as follows  
 
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets Useful lives (in years) 
  
Buildings 20 - 75 
Structures and equipment  

- electricity and communication devices 20 - 25 
- electricity equipment 15 - 35 
- other equipment 5 - 20 

Structures and equipment of Hydro Power Plant and 
Pumped Storage Plant  

- hydro technical waterway structures and equipment 75 
- pressure pipelines 50 
- hydro technical turbines 25 - 40 
- other equipment 8 - 15 

Structures and equipment of Reserve Power Plant  
- constructions and infrastructure 10 - 70 
- thermal and electricity equipment 10- 60 
- measuring devices and equipment 5 - 30 
- other equipment and tools 8 - 15 

Motor vehicles 4 - 10 
Other property, plant and equipment: 5 - 40 

- computer hardware and communication equipment 3 - 10 
- inventory, tools 4 - 10 

Intangible assets 3 - 4 
 

Average useful lives of newly acquired property, plant and equipment, which are highly important for the principal activities 
of the Group/Company, are as follows: 
 Average useful lives (years) 
  

330, 110, 35 Kv electricity transmission lines 40  
330, 110, 35, 6-10 Kv electricity distribution equipment 40 
330, 110, 35, 6-10 Kv capacity transformers 35-40 
Relay security and automation equipment 10-35 

Technological and dispatch control equipment 8-15 
  
 
Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease are depreciated over their estimated useful life on the same 
basis as owned assets. 
 
Gain or loss on disposal of non-current assets is calculated as the difference between the proceeds received from sale and 
the carrying value of the disposed asset and is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 
Subsequent repair costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with these costs will flow to the Group and the Company and the costs can be measured reliably. The carrying 
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised as expenses in the 
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred. 
 
Spare parts of high value that can be used only in combination with specific item of property, plant and equipment are 
accounted for as property, plant and equipment. Spare parts are carried at acquisition cost, less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the related item of 
property, plant and equipment. 
 
 
2.8 Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and other non-current assets 
 
At each reporting date, the Group and the Company review the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, 
intangible assets and other non-current assets to determine whether there is any indications that those assets have 
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to 
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is impossible to estimate the recoverable amount of an 
individual asset, the Group and the Company estimate the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the 
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, administrative assets of the Group 
and the Company are allocated to individual cash-generating units, otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of 
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. The recoverable amount of 
other non-current assets (right to receive emission allowances) is determined with reference to market prices of forward or 
spot transactions in emission allowances.  
  



LIETUVOS ENERGIJA, AB 
Company code 302648707, Elektrinės g. 21, LT-26108 Elektrėnai 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 
All amounts in LTL thousands unless otherwise stated 

 
 

70 
 

 
2 Accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.8 Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and other non-current assets (continued) 
 
The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, 
the expected future cash flows are discounted to their present value using the discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have 
not been adjusted.  
 
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is 
treated as a decrease of revaluation reserve. 
 
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to 
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in 
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried 
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase (without 
exceeding the sum of previous value impairment) as described in Note 2.7. 
 
2.9   Investment property 
 
Investment property of the Group/Company, which consists of investments in buildings, is held to earn rentals or for capital 
appreciation. Investment property is initially recognised at acquisition cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently all 
investment property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Investment property is depreciated 
using the same depreciation calculation methods and periods as those applied to property, plant and equipment.   
 
Transfers to and from investment property are made only when there is an evidence of change in the purpose of use of 
assets. Certain immovable property may be occupied by the Company/Group, with the remainder being held for rental 
yields or for capital appreciation. If part of immovable property occupied by the Company/Group can be sold separately, the 
Company/Group accounts for such property separately. The portion that is owner-occupied is accounted for under IAS 16, 
and the portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both is treated as investment property under IAS 
40. 
 
2.10 Non-current assets held for sale 
 

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable.  They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value 
less costs to sell if their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through 

continuing use. 
 
2.11 Emission allowances  

 
Based on the EU Directive 2003/07/EC, the greenhouse gas emissions trading scheme was developed which came into force 
on 1 January 2005. The first period of operation of this scheme covered 3 years from 2005 to 2007; the second period of 
operation covered 5 years from 2008 to 2012; and the third period of operation covers 7 years from 2013 to 2020. The 
system’s period of operation is in line with the period established under the Kyoto Agreement. The system functions on cap 
and trade basis.  The governments of the EU Member States are required to set caps for each emission unit in the scheme 

and for the period of implementation. These caps are specified in the National Allocation Plan to be developed by a 
responsible authority of each Member State (in Lithuania – the Ministry of Environment). The National Allocation Plan 
determines the annual emission amount (measured as tons of carbon dioxide equivalent) for each emission unit and each 
period and allocates annual emission allowances. 
 
Business entities involved in the trading scheme of emission allowances are entitled throughout the period from 2008 to 
2020 to use emission reduction units that are accepted in the EU trading scheme of emission allowances, but not in excess 
of 20% of total quantity of emission allowances allocated to them during the period from 2008 to 2012.   
 
A Member State has an obligation to allocate emission allowances by 28 February of each year in accordance with the 
National Allocation Plan (a part of emission allowances are set aside for new units).   
 
A Member State is to assure that an operator of each emission unit will submit data on the unit’s actual amount of 
greenhouse gas emissions during the current calendar year not later than by 30 April of the next year. 
 
Intangible assets 
The EU emission allowances are treated as intangible assets that were provided by the state in the form of non-monetary 
grant and that should be accounted for at fair value at the moment of their issuance or transfer.  
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2 Accounting policies (continued) 
 

2.11 Emission allowances (continued) 
 
After the initial recognition emission allowances are revalued at fair value using the active market prices. Increases in the 
carrying amount arising on the revaluation of emission allowances are credited against revaluation reserve directly to equity 
and decreases in excess of the previously accumulated amount in the revaluation reserve are recognised in the profit and 
loss account. On realisation of emission allowances, the respective positive balance of the revaluation reserve is taken 
directly to retained earnings.  
 
Government grant 
The EU emission allowances provided to the Company free of charge are treated as a non-monetary government grant 
which is recognised at fair value at the date of its receipt or issuance.  Subsequently, the government grant is recognised as 
income in proportion to emission allowances utilised during the validity period of emission allowances or upon their disposal.  
 
Provision for utilisation of emission allowances 
As the Company makes emissions, a liability arises to pay for these emissions to the state using emission allowances, the 
nominal value of which is equal to the quantity of emissions. Such liability is a provision which is estimated at a value equal 
to expenses to be incurred for the settlement of this liability at the date of the preparation of the statement of financial 
position. The liability can be offset against intangible assets only when the actual quantity of emissions is approved by an 
appropriate regulatory state authority. Changes in the value of liability are recognised in profit or loss and presented in the 
statement of comprehensive income.  
 
Lending of emission allowances  
Lending of emission allowances is a sale transaction during which assets is disposed and the right to receive emission 
allowances is acquired. The right to receive emission allowances is recognised as other non-current assets. Such assets are 
initially recognised at acquisition cost, and subsequently such assets are tested for impairment as described in Note 2.8.  
 
2.12   Financial assets 
 
According to IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: recognition and measurement’ financial assets are classified as either financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans granted and receivables, and available-for-
sale financial assets. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets based on its nature and purpose at 
initial recognition. 
 
Financial assets are recognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale process is under a contract, which terms 
require delivery of the financial assets within the timeframe established by the market concerned. Financial assets are 
recognised initially at fair value, plus, in the case of investments are not carried at fair value through profit or loss, directly 

attributable transaction costs. 
 
The Group’s/Company‘s financial assets include cash, trade and other accounts receivable, loans and investments in 
derivatives and are classified into two categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and loans and 
receivables. 
 
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows: 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

 
Such financial instruments are primarily held for trading and are initially recognised in accordance with the policy for initial 
recognition of financial instruments and are subsequently measured at fair value. The fair values are estimated based on 
quoted market prices or pricing models that take into account the current market and contractual prices of the underlying 
instruments and other factors. Derivatives are classified as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when it 
is negative. Gains and losses resulting from these instruments are included in the statement of comprehensive income as 
gains less losses from derivative instruments. 
 
Loans and receivables 
 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market. After initial recognition, such financial assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method (except for current receivables when the recognition of interest income would be immaterial), less any recognised 
impairment, which reflects irrecoverable accounts. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income when the loans and receivables are derecognised, impaired or amortised. 
 
Effective interest rate method  
 
Effective interest rate method is used to calculate amortised cost of financial assets and allocate interest income over the 
relevant period. The effective interest rate exactly discounts estimated future cash flows over the expected life of the 
financial asset. 
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Accounting policies (continued) 
 
 

2.12 Financial assets (continued) 
 

 
Impairment of financial assets 
 
At each reporting date the Group and the Company assess whether there is an indication that financial assets may be 
impaired. A financial asset is deemed to be impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more 
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of the financial assets. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtor or a group of debtors is 
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they 
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable 
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults. 
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, estimated using the effective interest rate. 
 
The carrying amount of the financial asset is directly reduced by the amount of estimated impairment loss, except for trade 
receivables, for which impairment is recorded through allowance account. Impaired accounts receivable are written-off 
when they are identified as uncollectible. 
 
If after the end of the reporting period the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is 
reversed through the statement of comprehensive income to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed 
its amortised cost at the reversal date that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset in prior years. 
 
Derecognition of financial assets 
 
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
derecognised when: 
- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 
- the Group/Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in 
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass through” arrangement; or 
- the Group/Company has transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

 
Where the Group/Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor 
retained the risks and rewards of ownership of asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the 
extent of the Group’s/Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a 
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the 
maximum amount of consideration that the Group/Company could be required to repay. 
 
 
2.13  Inventories 
 
Inventories are initially recorded at acquisition cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, inventories are stated at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value. Acquisition cost of inventories includes acquisition price and related taxes, and costs 
associated with bringing inventory into their current condition and location. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out 
(FIFO) method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price, less the estimated costs of completion, marketing and 
selling expenses. 
 
 
2.14  Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and cash at banks, demand deposits and other highly liquid investments 
(up to 3 months original maturity) that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of change in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are recognised in the statement of financial 
position as current borrowings.  
 
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits in current bank 
accounts, and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturity up to 3 months, and bank overdrafts. 
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2 Accounting policies (continued) 
 
 
2.15  Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group and the Company 
 
Recognition of instruments as debt or equity instruments 
 
Debt or equity instruments are classified as financial liabilities or equity based on the substance of the arrangement. 
 
Equity instruments 
 
Equity instrument is any contract that evidences an interest in the assets of the Group and the Company after deducting all 
of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the value of the proceeds received net of direct issue costs. Share 
premium represent the difference between the nominal value of shares and the proceeds received. 
 
Financial liabilities 
 
Liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or other financial liabilities. 
The Group/Company does not have any financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 
 
Other financial liabilities 
 
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are recognised at fair value, less transaction costs. 
 
After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 
Interest expenses are recognised using the effective interest rate method (see Note 2.12). 
 
Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.   
 
If a financing agreement concluded before the balance sheet date proves that the liability was non-current by its nature as 
of the date of the balance sheet, that financial liability is classified as non-current. 
 
Derecognition of financial liabilities 
 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is settled, cancelled or expires. When an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as derecognition of the original liability and 

the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 
 
2.16  Foreign currency 
 
Foreign currency transactions are accounted for in the litas using the exchange rate announced by the Bank of Lithuania on 
the dates of transaction, which approximate market exchange rates. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the 
litas using the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such 
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities into the litas are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income of the reporting period. 
 
With effect from 2 February 2002, the Lithuanian litas has been pegged to the euro at the rate of LTL 3.4528 to EUR 1, and 
the exchange rates of the litas against other currencies are set daily by the Bank of Lithuania. The exchange rates used for 
principal currencies were as follows: 
 

At 31 December 2012  At 31 December 2011 
       
LVL 1  = LTL 4.9520  LVL 1  = LTL 4.9421 
RUB 100  = LTL 8.5879   RUB 100  = LTL 8.3334 
SEK 10  = LTL 4.0042  SEK 10  = LTL 3.8600 
USD 1  = LTL 2.6060  USD 1  = LTL 2.6694 

 
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). In the consolidated financial statements, 
financial performance results and financial position of each of the Group‘s entities are presented in the litas, which is the 
functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency of the Group‘s consolidated financial statements. 
  



LIETUVOS ENERGIJA, AB 
Company code 302648707, Elektrinės g. 21, LT-26108 Elektrėnai 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 
All amounts in LTL thousands unless otherwise stated 

 
 

74 
 

2 Accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.16  Foreign currency (continued) 
 
When preparing separate financial statements of the Group companies, transactions denominated in currencies other than 
the functional currency of the company (in foreign currencies) are carried using exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 
transactions. At each balance sheet date monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the 
exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items measured at fair value and denominated in foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary 
items carried at cost and denominated in foreign currency are not translated. 
The assets and liabilities (including comparative figures) of foreign subsidiaries are translated into the litas for the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements using the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income and 
expenses (including comparative figures) are translated into the litas using the average exchange rate of the period, unless 
there were significant fluctuations of the exchange rate during the reporting period in which case an exchange rate 
prevailing at the date of the transaction is applied. Currency exchange rate differences, if any, are recognised under foreign 
currency translation reserve in equity. These changes in foreign exchange rates are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income in the period in which the foreign subsidiary is disposed. 
 
2.17  Grants  
 
Asset-related grants 
Asset-related government and the European Union grants and third party compensations comprise grants received in the 
form of non-current assets or intended for the acquisition of non-current assets. Grants are initially recognised at fair value 
of the asset received and subsequently accounted for in the statement of comprehensive income by reducing the 
depreciation charge of related asset over the expected useful life of the asset. 
 
Income-related grants 
Government and the European Union grants received as a compensation for the expenses or unearned income of the 
current or previous reporting period, also, all other grants, which are not asset-related grants, are treated as income-
related grants. The income-related grants are recognised as used in parts to the extent of the expenses incurred during the 
reporting period or unearned income to be compensated by that grant. These grants are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income, net of related expenditure.  
 
2.18 Provisions 
 

Provisions are recognised when the Group/Company has a legal obligation or irrevocable commitment as a result of past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group/Company expects that provision amount in 
part or in full will be compensated, e.g. by insurance, compensation to be received is recorded as a separate asset, but only 
when it is virtually certain. Expenses related to provisions are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income, net of 
compensation receivable. If the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of provision is discounted using 
the effective pre-tax discount rate set based on the interest rates for the period and taking into account specific risks 
associated with the provision as appropriate. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognised as a finance costs. 
 
Provisions for pension benefits 
Pursuant to the Lithuanian laws, each employee who terminates employment at retirement age is entitled to receive a 
payment of 2 monthly salaries upon retirement. Actuarial calculations are made to determine liability for this pension 
benefit. The liability is recognised at present value, which is discounted using the market interest rate. 

 
Provisions for onerous contract 
Provisions for onerous contract represent liabilities that are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently at the end of 
each reporting period they are measured at present value using the effective interest rate method. 
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2 Accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.19 Employee benefits 

 (a) Social security contributions 

The Company and the Group pay social security contributions to the state Social Security Fund (the Fund) on behalf of its 
employees based on the defined contribution plan in accordance with the local legal requirements. A defined contribution is 
a plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into the Fund and will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay 
further contributions if the Fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees benefits relating to employee service in 
the current and prior period. Social security contributions are recognised as expenses on an accrual basis and included in 
payroll expenses. 

(b) Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or 
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company and the Group 
recognise termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminate the employment of current employees 
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer 
made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after balance sheet date are 
discounted to present value. 
 
 (c) Bonus plans 

The Company and the Group recognise a liability and an expense for bonuses where contractually obliged or where there is 
a past practice that has created a constructive obligation. 

 
2.20 Leases  
 
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at 
inception date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the 
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. 
 
The Group and the Company are lessors 
 
Operating lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  
 
Finance lease – where the Company and the Group are lessees 

 
The Group and the Company account for finance leases as assets and liabilities in the balance sheet at the lower of the fair 
value of assets leased on the commencement of lease and the present value of minimum finance lease payments. 
The present value of minimum lease payments is determined using a discount rate equal to interest rate charged on lease 
payments, if possible to distinguish, otherwise general interest rate on the Company’s borrowings is used. Direct initial 
costs are added to the value of assets. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to 
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the 
income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of 
the liability for each period.  
 
The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated. In addition, as a result of finance lease, 
the Group‘s and the Company‘s finance costs are increased each reporting period in the statement of comprehensive 
income. The calculation of depreciation for assets acquired under finance lease is analogous to that used for own assets, 
however, such assets cannot be depreciated over a period longer than the lease period, provided that the ownership is not 
transferred to the Group or the Company at the end of the validity term of the finance lease contract.  
 
When the outcome of sale or leaseback transaction is finance lease, any gain on sale in excess of the carrying amount is not 
recognised as income immediately and rather it is deferred and amortised over the period of finance lease. 
 
Operating lease – where the Company and the Group are lessees 

 
Leases of property, plant and equipment where a significant portion of risks and rewards of ownership is retained by the 
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the statement of 
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 
 
Total benefit of lease incentives provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of lease expenses over the lease period 
on a straight-line basis. 
 
When the outcome of sale or leaseback transaction is operating lease and it is obvious that the transaction has been 
concluded at fair value, any gain or loss is recognised immediately. When the selling price is lower than the fair value, any 
gain or loss is recognised immediately, except for cases when losses are covered by lease payments lower than market 
prices in future, in which case they are deferred and amortised in proportion to lease payments over the period during 
which the asset is expected to be used. When the selling price is higher than the fair value, the excess amount is deferred 
and amortised over the period during which the asset is expected to be used.  
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2 Accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.21 Segment information 
 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance 
of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions. 
 
2.22  Income and expense recognition 
 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with a transaction will flow to 
the Group/Company and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, net of value added tax, returns of goods and discounts. The following specific 
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised: 
 
Revenue from sale of electricity 
 
Revenue from sale of electricity acquired at power exchange, electricity export and revenue from public service obligations 
(PSO) services is recognised when substantially all risks and rewards related to the object of sale have been transferred to 
the buyer. The Company does not recognise revenue and expenses from electricity trading in the power exchange with 
respect to those transaction in which it acts as an agent. 
 
Revenue from electricity-related services 
 
Revenue from electricity transmission and other electricity-related services is recognised after the service is rendered. 
 

Tariff regulation 
 
Tariffs for the electricity transmission and PSO services are regulated by the National Control Commission for Prices and 
Energy (hereinafter “the Commission”) by establishing the upper limit of the tariff. Specific prices for the transmission and 
PSO services are established by the supplier of the service within the limits approved by the Commission. 
 
Tariffs of electricity sold by the producers and independent suppliers as well as tariffs for capacity reserves are not 
regulated except the cases when the producer or supplier holds more than 25 per cent of the market, in which case, the 
procedure for tariff setting is established by the Commission. 
 
Tariffs for import and export of electricity are not regulated. 
 
In providing PSO services the Group earns income and incurs expenses. PSO service fees are the fees paid to the suppliers 
of electricity under public service obligations scheme (based on pre-set annual quantities and prices of services).  
Subsequently, these services are provided to the distribution system operators and electricity consumers using a tariff 
established by the Commission. If at the end of the calendar year, PSO service fees collected by the Company from 
electricity consumers and the distribution system operators exceed or are less than the actual PSO service fees paid to the 
suppliers of these services, the difference needs to be taken into account by the transmission system operator in assessing 
the component of the price for PSO services for the next year.  
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2 Accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.22 Revenue and expense recognition (continued) 
 
Revenue from repair services 
 
Revenue from individual contracts/projects with customers, i.e. repair services, is recognised based on the proportion of the 
work completed, which is estimated by comparing actually incurred costs on the project with the project’s total estimated 
cost. Expected change in the profitability is accounted for in the statement of comprehensive income when such change is 
determined. Projects are reviewed periodically and if determined that a contract will be onerous, respective provisions are 
accounted for. 
 
Other operating income  
 
Interest income is recognised by the accruals method considering the outstanding balance of debt and the effective interest 
rate. Interest income is recorded in the statement of cash flows as cash flows from investing activities. 
 
Dividend income is recognised after the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established. Dividends received 
are recorded in the statement of cash flows as cash flows from investing activities. Dividends of subsidiaries, attributable to 
the parent company, are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. 
 
Income and expenses related to the IT services provided by the Group and the Company, resort buildings owned by the 
Group and the Company and sales and lease of non-current assets are accounted as other operating income and expenses. 
 
Recognition of expenses 
 
Expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred by the accrual method.  
 
2.23 Borrowing costs 
 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that necessarily take a 
substantial time to get ready for intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the costs of those assets until those assets 
are completely ready for use or sale.  Interest income that relate to temporal investment of borrowed funds until their use 
for the acquisition of the assets are deducted from the acquisition cost of the assets.  

 
Other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the income statement as incurred. 
 
2.24  Income tax  
 
Income tax expense for the period comprises current tax and deferred tax. 
 
Income tax 
Current tax charges are calculated on current profit before tax, as adjusted for certain non-deductible expenses/non-taxable 
income. Income tax is calculated using the tax rate effective as at the date of issue of the financial statements. Income tax 
rate of 15% was used in 2012 and 2011.  
 
Deferred income tax 
Deferred income tax is accounted for using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised on all 
temporary differences that will increase the taxable profit in future, whereas deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent 
that is probable to reduce the taxable profit in future. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are not recognised when 
temporary differences arise from goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting, nor taxable profit 
or loss. 
 
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each date of the financial statements and if it is not probable that the Group and the 
Company will generate sufficient taxable profit to realise these assets, they are reduced to an amount which is likely to reduce 
the taxable profit in future. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are estimated using the tax rate that has been applied 
when calculating income tax for the year when the related temporary differences are to be realised or settled. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only where they relate to income tax assessed by the same fiscal authority or 
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and current tax liabilities. 
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2.   Accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.24  Income tax (continued) 
 
Current income tax and deferred income tax 
Current income tax and deferred income tax are recognised as income or expenses and included in net profit or loss for the 
reporting period, except for the cases when tax arises from a transaction or event that is recognised directly in equity, in 
which case taxes are also recorded in equity. 
 
2.25  Earnings per share 
 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the shareholders by the weighted average of 
ordinary registered shares in issue. Where the number of shares changes without causing a change in the economic 
resources, the weighted average of ordinary registered shares is adjusted in proportion to the change in the number of 
shares as if this change took place at the beginning of the previous period.  
 
As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the weighted average number of shares, based on which the earnings per 
share are calculated was 635,083,615. As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 and during the periods then ended, 
the Company had no dilutive options, therefore, its basic and diluted earnings per share are the same. 
 
2.26 Contingencies  
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements, except for contingent liabilities in business 
combinations. They are disclosed in the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits is remote.  
 
A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of income or economic benefits 
is probable. 
 
2.27  Events after the end of the reporting period 
 
Subsequent events that provide additional information about the Group’s and the Company’s position at the reporting date 
(adjusting events) are disclosed in the financial statements. Subsequent events that are not adjusting events are disclosed 
in the notes when their effect is material. 
 
2.28  Related parties 
 
Related parties to the Group and the Company are defined as shareholders, employees, members of the Board, their close 

family members and companies that directly or indirectly (through the intermediary) control or are controlled by, or are 
under common control with, the Group and the Company, provided such relationship empowers one of the parties to 
exercise the control or significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. 
 
2.29 Inter-company offsetting 
 
When preparing the financial statements, assets and liabilities, as well as revenue and expenses are not offset, except for 
the cases when certain accounting standards specifically require such offsetting. 
 
2.30  Changes in disclosure of comparative information on operating segments  
 
 
As at 31 December 2011, the Board analysed the operations of the Company as a single segment of electricity production 
and trade, including the segment of electricity export/import. The operations of Energijos Tiekimas UAB representing trade 
in electricity also constituted a separate segment. Other activities within the Group included repair services of energy 
facilities and IT services. 
 
With effect from 2012, the board started analysing the operations in terms of profitability of the regulated activities and the 
commercial activities of the Company. The regulated activities include the Reserve Power Plant’s revenue from heat and 
electricity production, balancing and regulation, capacity reserve provision, including capacity reserve revenue of Kruonis 
Pumped Storage Power Plant. The commercial activities include electricity trade in a free market, export/import, electricity 
production at Kaunas Hydro Power Plant and Kruonis Pumped Storage Power Plant, and the related balancing and regulation 
services. Administrative expenses are allocated between the regulated activities and the commercial activities based on 
operating expenses, headcount and sales. The operations of Energijos Tiekimas UAB representing electricity supply 
constitute a separate segment. Other activities within the Group included repair services of energy facilities and IT services.  
Changes were made in disclosure of comparative information on operating segments in view of how the board analysed the 
Group‘s operations in 2012 (Note 29).   
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2.31 Restatement of comparative figures on reclassification of non-current borrowings  
 
When preparing the financial statements of Lietuvos Energija AB for the year 2012, the following adjustments were made to 
comparative figures for 2011 in relation to reclassification of non-current borrowings from non-current accounts payable to 
current accounts payable. The reclassification of borrowings was performed as a result of non-compliance with the financial 
and non-financial covenants stipulated in loan agreements. See Note 19 for further details.  
 
The effect of reclassification on the Group‘s liabilities as of 31 December 2011 is summarised below:  
 

  

At 31 December 
2011 

 Reclassification 
of borrowings 

 At 31 December 
2011 (restated) 

Non-current liabilities 
      Borrowings 
 

602,258  (355,252)  247,006 

Current liabilities 
 

     

Borrowings 
 

39,908  355,252  395,160 

TOTAL BORROWINGS 
 

642,166  -  642,166 

 
The effect of reclassification on the Group‘s liabilities as of 31 December 2010 is summarised below:  
 

  

At 31 December 
2010 

 Reclassification 
of borrowings 

 At 31 December 
2010 (restated) 

Non-current liabilities 
      Borrowings 
 

503,164  (409,146)  94,018 

Current liabilities 
 

     

Borrowings 
 

45,362  409,146  454,508 

TOTAL BORROWINGS 
 

548,526  -  548,526 

 
The effect of reclassification on the Company‘s liabilities as of 31 December 2011 is summarised below:  
 

  

At 31 December 
2011 

 Reclassification 
of borrowings 

 At 31 December 
2011 (restated) 

Non-current liabilities 
      Borrowings 
 

602,258  (355,252)  247,006 

Current liabilities 
 

     

Borrowings 
 

38,739  355,252  393,991 

TOTAL BORROWINGS 
 

640,997  -  640,997 

 
The effect of reclassification on the Company‘s liabilities as of 31 December 2010 is summarised below:  
 

  

At 31 December 
2010 

 Reclassification 
of borrowings 

 At 31 December 
2010 (restated) 

Non-current liabilities 
      Borrowings 
 

503,164  (409,146)  94,018 

Current liabilities 
 

     

Borrowings 
 

31,828  409,146  440,974 

TOTAL BORROWINGS 

 

534,992  -  534,992 

 
  



LIETUVOS ENERGIJA, AB 
Company code 302648707, Elektrinės g. 21, LT-26108 Elektrėnai 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 
All amounts in LTL thousands unless otherwise stated 

 
 

80 
 

2.31 Restatement of comparative figures on reclassification of non-current borrowings (continued) 
 
As a result of reclassification of borrowings, there occurred changes in liquidity ratios of the Company and the Group as of 
31 December 2011:  
 

Ratio  Company  Group 

 As previously 
reported 

After 
reclassification 

 As previously 
reported 

After 
reclassification 

      
Current liquidity ratio 1.48 0.60  1.50 0.65 
Quick liquidity ratio 0.96 0.39  1.03 0.45 

 
As a result of reclassification of borrowings, there occurred changes in liquidity ratios of the Company and the Group as of 
31 December 2010:  
 

Ratio  Company  Group 

 As previously 
reported 

After 
reclassification 

 As previously 
reported 

After 
reclassification 

      
Current liquidity ratio 1.58 0.61  1.57 0.64 
Quick liquidity ratio 1.10 0.42  1.54 0.45 
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2.   Accounting policies (continued) 
 
 
3 Critical accounting estimates and uncertainties 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and costs 
and contingencies. The areas where estimates are significant to these financial statements include fair value evaluation and 
depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Notes 5 and 6), evaluation of impairment for accounts receivable and 
investments (Notes 7, 8 and 10, 11), valuation of inventory at net realisable value (Note 9), estimation of provisions for 
emission allowances (Note 26), percentage of completion evaluation for repair service contracts (Note 30) and disclosure of 
contingent liabilities (Note 37). Future events may cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The 
effect of such changes in the estimates will be recorded in the financial statements when determined. 
 
Tax audits 
 
The tax authorities may at any time inspect the books and records within 5 years subsequent to the reported tax year, and 
may impose additional tax assessments and penalties. The Company’s and Group‘s management is not aware of any 
circumstances which may give rise to a potential material liability in this respect. 
 
Depreciation rates of property, plant and equipment 
 
When assessing the remaining useful life of property, plant and equipment, management takes into consideration the 
conclusions provided by employees responsible for technical maintenance of assets. 
 
In 2012, the Company reviewed the depreciation rates of its property, plant and equipment. As a result, the depreciation 
rates were adjusted for items of assets included in the category of Other property, plant and equipment belonging to the 
Reserve Power Plant as follows:    
 

Description of assets 
Depreciation rates after 

adjustment 
Depreciation rates before 

adjustment 

   

PCs, computer networks and hardware  4 8 

Remote video monitoring systems, entrance control 
systems  

8 10 

Communication equipment  4 10 

Tools 5 15 

Furniture 7 15 

 
 
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
 
No independent valuation was performed for the Company‘s and the Group‘s assets stated at revalued amounts as of 31 
December 2012, because in the management‘s opinion, the fair value of assets did not significantly differ from its carrying 
amount.   
 
On 31 December 2011 an independent property valuer Census Optimus UAB determined the market value of the Company‘s 
assets stated at revalued amount. The valuation was performed using the replacement cost method. 
 
On 31 December 2011, revaluation was carried out for property, plant and equipment of the Company‘s subsidiary Kauno 
Energetikos Remontas UAB. Property, plant and equipment were revaluated on 31 December 2011 based on the report 
submitted by an independent property valuer Latmas Nekilnojamasis Turtas UAB on changes in the fair values of immovable 
property in Lithuania by region. This report was based on observable market evidence on prices of immovable property.  
 
In October 2010, independent property valuers carried out the revaluation of non-current assets which were transferred as 
in-kind contribution to the share capital of subsidiaries and associates. Considering the date of the last revaluation of these 
assets and the periods of their acquisition, in the opinion of management, the fair value of the Group’s property, plant and 
equipment stated at revalued amount and not revaluated in 2011 did not significantly differ from its carrying amount as at 
31 December 2011.   
 
  
 
 
 
  



LIETUVOS ENERGIJA, AB 
Company code 302648707, Elektrinės g. 21, LT-26108 Elektrėnai 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 
All amounts in LTL thousands unless otherwise stated 

 
 

82 
 

 
3   Critical accounting estimates and uncertainties (continued) 
 
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 
 
The Group and the Company make an assessment, at least annually, whether there are any indications that the carrying 
amount of property, plant and equipment has been impaired. If that is the case, the Group and the Company make an 
impairment test in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2. 
 
In 2012 and 2011, the Group and the Company accounted for property, plant and equipment (except for assets of the 
Hydro Power Plant, Pumped Storage Power Plant and Reserve Power Plant) at fair value in accordance with International 
Accounting Standard No.16 ‘Property, plant and equipment’.   
 
As of 31 December 2012 and 2011, the management of Lietuvos Energija AB tested for impairment the property, plant and 
equipment of Kaunas Hydro Power Plant and Kruonis Pumped Storage Power Plant and did not identify any impairment 
indications.    
 
As of 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Company did not assess the impairment for the Reserve Power Plant (with the 
carrying amounts of LTL 2,494m and LTL 2,270m, respectively) due to regulatory legislation uncertainties outstanding as of 
31 December 2011 in relation to electricity tariffs and changes therein, the regulated profit margins and outputs. According 
to the Description of PSO Services effective as of 31 December 2011, the producers of electricity were paid PSO service fees 
based on the actual electricity output per year subject to support and according to the fixed buy-out prices. As of 31 
December 2012, impairment test was carried out and the estimated recoverable amount of the Reserve Power Plant 
exceeded the carrying amount of LTL 2,612m, hence no impairment charge was recognised. The recoverable amount of 
these assets increased in 2012 as a result of introduction of Resolution No. O3-229 of the National Control Commission for 
Prices and Energy on 14 September 2012. 
 
In accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 2.8, the property, plant and equipment of the Reserve Power 
Plant was tested for impairment as of 31 December 2012.  
 
The Reserve Power Plant is treated as a single cash generating unit based on the following:  

 The transmission system operator treats each power plant (including the Reserve Power Plant) as a single 
generating unit irrespective of the number of individual units that constitute the power plant. 

 All units of the Reserve Power Plant can be used for both, electricity generation and for the provision of capacity 
reserve services. The situation of which unit at a specific moment is used for electricity generation or launching of 
capacity reserve depends on the system‘s needs, the technical condition of the units (e.g. scheduled repair works, 
disruptions in operations of units), potential disruptions in supply of natural gas, etc. 

 Electricity and thermal power production and provision of capacity reserve services at the Reserve Power Plant are 

considered to be regulated activities.  
 When establishing the prices for the regulated services, the National Control Commission for Prices and Energy 

takes into account all variable and fixed costs of the Reserve Power Plant, allocates and compensates a part of 
these costs against capacity reserve revenue and the remaining part against the PSO service fees. The electricity 
buy-up price is established for electricity produced at the Reserve Power Plant as a whole. 

 
The recoverable amount of cash generating units was estimated with reference to the value in use calculations. These 
calculations take into account the pre-tax cash flow forecasts based on the financial budgets approved by the management 
for the period of five years. Continuous cash flow is estimated using the discounted cash flow in the fifth year.      
 
The management estimated the projected operating profit in view of historical data, forecasts of market position and the 
Metholodogy for establishing the prices for electricity and capacity reserve services approved by Resolution No. O3-229 of 
the National Control Commission for Prices and Energy on 14 September 2012.   
 
Key assumptions used in performing the impairment test were as follows:  

1. Value in use was estimated with reference to the most up-to-date budget covering the period from 2013 to 2017, 
the projected pre-tax discounted cash flows using a pre-tax weighted average capital cost (WACC) of 6.37%.  The 
WACC was estimated according to the model of the National Control Commission for Prices and Energy based on 
the weighted cost of capital and debt, under which the equity risk premium is estimated as the difference in the 
average rate of return on investments in 10-year US treasury bonds and stocks. When estimating the pre-tax 
weighted average capital cost, the Company used the average annual borrowing cost and the base risk-free 
interest rates effective in December 2012, which were adjusted for risk effects in view of data announced in public 
by the Bank of Lithuania and the European Central Bank.    

2. Cash flow forecasts are prepared by the management as a result of financial projections based on the financial 
performance results, market development expectations and regulatory environment. In line with the Methodology 
approved by the Commission, the Reserve Power Plant‘s revenue is estimated based on the projections of variable 
costs, fixed costs and general and administrative costs. The projections of revenue from regulated activities also 
take into account the depreciation expenses of property, plant and equipment and the return on investments, 
which is calculated on the value of assets used in the regulated activities. When estimating the return on 
investments, the management used the rate of return on investments set by the Commission for the year 2013, 
which was 6.129236%. The management‘s estimates showed that on average the gross profit margin will reach 
23% during a five-year period. The gross profit margin takes into account all operating costs, general and 
administrative costs attributable to the Reserve Power Plant.     
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3 Critical accounting estimates and uncertainties (continued) 
 

3. A pre-tax discount rate was used for cash flow forecasts. It reflects the risk pertaining to the operating segment of 
electricity production. The same discount rate is used in calculations.  

  
As a result of the analysis, the management made a decision that it was not necessary to recognise any impairment loss as 
of 31 December 2012. Had the discount rate increased by 1p.p., no impairment loss would have to be recognised for cash 
generating units. 
 
 
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries (in the Company)  
 
In 2012 and 2011, Kauno Energetikos Remontas UAB generated profit. In view of this, the management of Lietuvos 
Energija AB believed that in 2012 there was no indication of further impairment of investment and decided not to recognise 
any additional impairment in respect of Kauno Energetikos Remontas UAB. 
  
Write-down of inventory to net realisable value 
 
Write-down of inventory to the net realisable value was determined based on the management’s estimates on inventory 
obsolescence and estimated possible selling prices. This determination requires significant judgement. Judgement is 
exercised based on historical and future usage of spare parts and materials as well as estimated possible selling price and 
other factors. 
 
Provisions for emission allowances 
 
The Group/Company estimates the provisions for emission allowances/emission reduction units based on actual quantity of 
emission during the reporting period multiplied by the market price of one emission allowance/emission reduction unit. The 
actual quantity of emission is approved by the responsible regulating state authority within 4 months after the year-end. 
Based on historical experience, the management of the Group/Company does not expect any material differences between 
the amount of estimated provisions as at 31 December 2012 and emission quantities which will be approved in 2013. 
 
Accrual of PSO service fees  
 
The variable part of PSO service fees is estimated with reference to variable costs incurred during the reporting period. The 
producers ensuring the security of electric power supply and reserves of energy system, submit their PSO service fee 
estimates to the Commission which include breakdown of variable electric power production costs – natural gas, heavy fuel 
oil, emission allowance costs, costs for reagent desulphurisation. The variable part of PSO service fees in future calendar 
year is estimated with reference to scheduled variable costs to be incurred for the production of approved quota of 

electricity subject to support. As of 31 December 2012, the Company‘s management accounted for LTL 9,103 thousand (31 
December 2011: LTL 96,030 thousand) PSO service revenue as compensation for variable costs. In addition, the Company 
recognised additional PSO service revenue of LTL 15,061 thousand, which was estimated by the National Control 
Commission for Prices and Energy in line with the methodology and allocated to the Company for the year 2011. Resolution 
No. O5-283 (11 October 2012).  
 
The underlying principles used for other significant estimates are outlined in the respective notes to the financial 
statements. 
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4 Intangible assets 
 
The structure of the Group‘s intangible assets as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 was as follows: 

 

Group 
 

Patents and 

licenses  

Computer 

software  

Emission 

allowances 

 Other 

intangible 

assets  Total  
           

At 31 December 2010           

    Cost   36  1,439  37,811  31  39,317 

Accumulated amortisation  (25)  (1,357)  -  (24)  (1,406) 

Accumulated impairment  -  -  -  -  - 

Net book amount at 31 December 2010  11  82  37,811  7  37,911 

Year ended 31 December 2010           

Opening net book amount  11  82  37,811  7  37,911 

Additions   7  287  126,826  -  127,120 

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 7)    1,084  1,875  -  133  3,092 

Grant received (Note 21)  -  -  26,701  -  26,701 

Disposal  -  -  (38,948)  (7)  (38,955) 

Emission allowances utilised   -  -  (54,212)  -  (54,212) 

Revaluation costs of emission allowances   -  -  (62,721)  -  (62,721) 

Reclassification from property, plant and 

equipment (Note 5) 

 
-  1,099  - 

 
-  1,099 

Amortisation  (10)  (290)  -  -  (300) 

    Net book amount at 31 December 2011  1,092  3,053  35,457  133  39,735 

At 31 December 2011           

    Cost   1,489  5,880  35,457  163  42,989 

    Accumulated amortisation  (397)  (2,827)  -  (30)  (3,254) 

    Accumulated impairment  -  -  -  -  - 

Net book amount at 31 December 2011  1,092  3,053  35,457  133  39,735 

Year ended 31 December 2011           

Opening net book amount  1,092  3,053  35,457  133  39,735 

Additions   370  378  112,752  6  113,506 

Grant received (Note 21)  -  -  14,832  -  14,832 

Emission allowances utilised (Note 26)      (16,268)    (16,268) 

     Revaluation costs of emission      

    allowances 

 
-  -  (76,121) 

 
-  (76,121) 

    Lending of emission allowances (Note 8)  -  -  (15,239)  -  (15,239) 

    Reclassification from property, plant and     

    equipment (Note 5)  

 
-  148  - 

 
63  211 

    Reclassification from inventories   -  8  -  -  8 

    Amortisation  (585)  (1,534)  -  (4)  (2,123) 

    Net book amount at 31 December 2012  877  2,053  55,413  198  58,541 

At 31 December 2012           

    Cost   1,859  6,414  55,413  232  63,918 

    Accumulated amortisation  (982)  (4,361)  -  (34)  (5,377) 

Net book amount at 31 December 2012  877  2,053  55,413  198  58,541 

 
In 2012, the Group carried out the testing of the combined-cycle block and capitalised the emission allowances utilised 
during the testing by adding their value of LTL 3,205 thousand to the cost of the combined-cycle block.  
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4 Intangible assets (continued) 
 
The structure of the Company‘s intangible assets as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 was as follows: 
 

Company 

 

Patents 

and 

licenses  
Computer 

software  

Emission 

allowances 

 Other 

intangible 

assets  Total  
           

At 31 December 2010           

    Cost   -  1,280  37,811  1  39,092 

Accumulated amortisation  -  (1,280)  -  (1)  (1,281) 

Accumulated impairment  -  -  -  -  - 

Net book amount at 31 December 

2010 
 

- 
 

- 
 

37,811 
 

- 
 

37,811 

Year ended 31 December 2010           

Opening net book amount  -  -  37,811  -  37,811 

Additions   -  134  126,826  -  126,960 

Grant received (Note 21)  -  -  26,701  -  26,701 

Disposal  -  -  (38,948)  -  (38,948) 

Emission allowances utilised   -  -  (54,212)  -  (54,212) 

Revaluation costs of emission 

allowances 

 
-  -  (62,721) 

 
-  (62,721) 

Reclassification from property, plant 

and equipment (Note 5) 

 
-  942  - 

 
-  942 

 Amortisation  -  (188)  -  -  (188) 

    Net book amount at 31 December 

2011 

 
- 

 
888 

 
35,457 

 
- 

 
36,345 

At 31 December 2011           

    Cost   -  2,358  35,457  -  37,815 

    Accumulated amortisation  -  (1,470)  -  -  (1,470) 

    Accumulated impairment  -  -  -  -  - 

Net book amount at 31 December 
2011 

 
- 

 
888 

 
35,457 

 
- 

 
36,345 

Year ended 31 December 2011           

Opening net book amount  -  888  35,457  -  36,345 

Additions   -  51  112,752  6  112,809 

Grant received (Note 21)  -  -  14,832  -  14,832 

Emission allowances utilised (Note 26)  -  -  (16,268)  -  (16,268) 

     Revaluation costs of emission  

     allowances 

 
-  -  (76,121) 

 
-  (76,121) 

     Lending of emission allowances (Note 8)      (15,239)  -  (15,239) 

    Reclassification from property, plant     

    and equipment (Note 5)  

 
-  -  - 

 
63  63 

    Amortisation  -  (357)  -  (4)  (361) 

    Net book amount at 31 December 

2011 

 
- 

 
582 

 
55,413 

 
65 

 
56,060 

At 31 December 2012           

    Cost   -  2,140  55,413  69  57,622 

    Accumulated amortisation  -  (1,558)  -  (4)  (1,562) 

Net book amount at 31 December 

2012 

 
-  582  55,413 

 
65  56,060 

 

In 2012, the Company carried out the testing of the combined-cycle block and capitalised the emission allowances utilised 
during the testing by adding their value of LTL 3,205 thousand to the cost of the combined-cycle block. 
 
 



LIETUVOS ENERGIJA, AB 
Company code 302648707, Elektrinės g. 21, LT-26108 Elektrėnai 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 
All amounts in LTL thousands unless otherwise stated 

 
 

86 
 

5 Property, plant, and equipment 
 
The structure of the Group‘s property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 was as follows: 

Group 

Land 

 

Buildings  

 

Structures 

and 

equipment   

 Structures and 

equipment of 

Hydro Power 

Plant and 
Pumped 

Storage Power 

Plant 

  

 

 

Structures and 

equipment of 
Reserve Power 

Plant   

  

 

 

 

 

     Combined-
cycle block 

 

Motor 

vehicles  Other PP&E   

Construction 

in progress  Total  

Net book amount at 31 December 
2010   

  
      

  
       

Cost or revalued amount 5,867  23,748  257,745  697,252  1,921,819  -  6,437  48,055  902,819  3,863,742 

Accumulated depreciation  -  (7,999)  (242,244)  (136,399)  (472,297)  -  (5,076)  (34,760)  -  (898,775) 

Accumulated impairment -  (5,306)  (4,013)  (769)   (77,151)   -  (31)  (728)  -  (87,998) 

Net book amount at 31 December 

2010 5,867  10,443 

 

11,488  560,084  1,372,371  

 

- 

 

1,330  12,567  902,819  2,876,969 

                    

Opening net book amount  5,867   10,443   11,488   560,084   1,372,371   -  1,330   12,567   902,819   2,876,969 

Additions -   619   678   198   708   -  115   76   268,665   271,059 

Reclassification from/to assets held for 

sale  -   (1,531)  
  

2,063   -    -    
-  

41   213   -    786 

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 7) -   -  

  

3,352   -    -    

 

- 

 

29   21,006   -    24,387 

Write-offs -   -   (4)   (133)   (134)   -  -   (20)   -   (291) 

Disposals -   -   -   (16)   (292)   -  (168)   -   -   (476) 

Reclassifications between groups -    -   1,060   4,508   (1,319)   -  -   1,048   (5,297)   - 

Reclassification to intangible assets 

(Note 4)  -    - 
  

 -   -    -    
-  

 -   (157)   (942)   (1,099) 

Revaluation (130)   7,928   10,816   214   -   -  41   (6,149)   2,275   14,995 

Depreciation -   (363)   (1,841)   (27,535)   (40,667)   -  (350)   (1,164)   -   (71,920) 

Net book amount at 31 December 

2011 5,737   17,096   27,612   537,320   1,330,667   

 

- 

 

1,038   27,420   1,167,520   3,114,410 

                    

Net book amount at 31 December 

2011 
  

  
  

    

  
 

 
 

 
 

  

Cost or revalued amount 5,737   18,221   32,885   701,763   1,918,800   -  5,540   66,315   1,167,520   3,916,781 

Accumulated depreciation  -   (974)   (4,049)   (163,674)   (510,982)   -  (4,471)   (38,167)   -   (722,317) 

Accumulated impairment -   (151)   (1,224)   (769)   (77,151)   -  (31)   (728)   -   (80,054) 

Net book amount at 31 December 

2011 
5,737 

  
17,096   27,612 

  
537,320   1,330,667   -  1,038 

  
27,420 

  
1,167,520 

  
3,114,410 
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5 Property, plant, and equipment (continued) 
 

Group 

Land 

 

Buildings  

 

Structures 

and 

equipment   

 Structures and 

equipment of 

Hydro Power 

Plant and 
Pumped 

Storage Power 

Plant 

  

 

 

Structures and 

equipment of 
Reserve Power 

Plant   

  

 

 

 

 

     Combined-
cycle block 

 

Motor vehicles  Other PP&E   

Construction in 

progress  Total  

Year ended 31 December 
2011           

 
 

 
       

Opening net book amount  5,737   17,096   27,612   537,320   1,330,667  -   1,038   27,420   1,167,520   3,114,410 

Additions -   -  125  207  1,055  -  127  3,382  175,549  180,445 

Reclassification from/to assets held 

for sale  -   1,090 
 

-  -  - 
 

- 
 

-  -  -  1,090 

Write-offs -   -  (52)  (5)  (68)  -  -  (15)  -  (140) 

Disposals -     (2)  (16)  (18)  (201)  (6)  (16)  -  (259) 

Reclassifications between groups -   92  -  1,398  (90)  1,329,353  -  32  (1,330,785)  - 

Reclassification to intangible assets 

(Note 4)  -  - 
 

-  -  - 
 

- 
 

-  (148)  (63)  (211) 

Reclassification to investment 

property (Note 6)  -   (726) 
 

-  -  - 
 

- 
 

-  -  (74)  (800) 

Reclassification from inventories -  -  -  -  -  -  -  40  -  40 

Adjustment of revaluation reserve -   (619)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (619) 

Depreciation -   (537)  (3,305)  (27,365)  (42,044)  (12,615)  (275)  (9,224)  -  (95,365) 

Net book amount at 31 

December 2012 5,737   16,396  24,378  511,539  1,289,502 
 

1,316,537 
 

884  21,471  12,147  3,198,591 

At 31 December 2012                      

Cost or revalued amount 5,737   18,058  32,956  703,347  1,919,679  1,329,152  5,661  69,590  12,147  4,096,327 

Accumulated depreciation  -   (1,511)  (7,354)  (191,039)  (553,026)  (12,615)  (4,746)  (47,391)  -  (817,682) 

Accumulated impairment -   (151)  (1,224)  (769)  (77,151)  -  (31)  (728)  -  (80,054) 

Net book amount at 31 

December 2012 
5,737 

  
16,396  24,378 

 
511,539  1,289,502  1,316,537  884 

 
21,471 

 
12,147 

 
3,198,591 
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5 Property, plant, and equipment (continued) 
 
In December 2012, the Group‘s property, plant and equipment carried at revalued amount was adjusted as a result of 
identification of an error. The Group‘s management believe the error is not material, therefore, the adjustment was made 
on a prospective basis. The total effect of adjustment amounted to LTL 619 thousand and was recognised as follows:   
 
 Decrease in other 

comprehensive income and 

equity under revaluation 

reserve  

(Expenses) 

recognised in 

profit or loss  

 

 Total revaluation 

effect 

 

 (619) -  (619) 

 
In December 2011, independent valuation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment carried at revalued amount was 
performed. The total effect of revaluation amounted to LTL 14,995 thousand and was recognised as follows: 
 
 Increase in other 

comprehensive income and 

equity under revaluation 

reserve  

(Expenses) 

recognised in 

profit or loss  

 

 

 Total revaluation 

effect 

 

 

 6,590 8,405  14,995 

 
 
As described in Note 3, as at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group’s management decided not to perform an additional 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment/not to recognise impairment for property, plant and equipment.  
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5 Property, plant, and equipment (continued) 
 

The structure of the Company‘s property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 was as follows: 
 
 

Company 

Land 

 

Buildings  

 

Structures and 

equipment   

 Structures and 
equipment of 

Hydro Power 

Plant and 

Pumped Storage 

Power Plant 

  

 

 
Structures and 

equipment of 

Reserve Power 

Plant 

  

 

 

 
 

 

 

Motor 

vehicles      

 

Other PP&E  

Construction in 

progress   Total 

Net book amount at 31 December 2010                  

Cost or revalued amount 5,867  415  11,698  697,466  1,921,819  5,238  34,515  902,986  3,580,004 

Accumulated depreciation  -  -  -  (136,399)  (472,297)  (4,540)  (33,371)  -  (646,607) 

Accumulated impairment -  (151)  (1,224)  (769)  (77,151)  (31)  (728)  -  (80,054) 

Net book amount at 31 December 2010 5,867  

 

264 

 

10,474  560,298  1,372,371  667  416  902,986  2,853,343 

Year ended 31 December 2010                   

Opening net book amount  5,867  264  10,474  560,298  1,372,371  667  416  902,986  2,853,343 

Additions -  -  -  198  708  16  15  268,562  269,499 

Write-offs -  -  -  (133)  (134)  -  -  -  (267) 

Disposals -  -  -  (16)  (292)  (168)  -  -  (476) 

Reclassifications between groups -  -  -  4,508  (1,319)  -  -  (3,189)  - 

Reclassification to intangible assets (Note 4)   -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (942)  (942) 

Revaluation  (130)  1,179  1,425  -  -  (20)  (82)  -  2,372 

Depreciation -  (5)  (746)  (27,535)  (40,667)  (152)  (177)  -  (69,282) 

Net book amount at 31 December 2011 5,737  1,438  11,153  537,320  1,330,667  343  172  1,167,417  3,054,247 
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5 Property, plant, and equipment (continued) 
 

Company 

Land 

 

Buildings  

 

Structures and 

equipment   

 Structures and 

equipment of 

Hydro Power 

Plant and 
Pumped 

Storage Power 

Plant 

  

 

 

Structures and 

equipment of 
Reserve Power 

Plant   

  

 

 

 

 

     Combined-
cycle block 

 

Motor 

vehicles  Other PP&E   

Construction in 

progress  Total  

Net book amount at 31 December 
2011 

  
  

  
    

  
 

 
 

 
 

  

Cost or revalued amount 5,737  1,594  13,123  701,763  1,918,800  -  4,193  28,718  1,167,417  3,841,345 

Accumulated depreciation  -  (5)  (746)  (163,674)  (510,982)  -  (3,819)  (27,818)  -  (707,044) 

Accumulated impairment  -  (151)  (1,224)  (769)  (77,151)  -  (31)  (728)   -  (80,054) 

Net book amount at 31 December 

2011 5,737  1,438 

 

11,153  537,320  1,330,667  

 

- 

 

343  172  1,167,417  3,054,247 

                   

Year ended 31 December 2011                    - 

Opening net book amount  5,737  1,438  11,153  537,320  1,330,667  -  343  172  1,167,417  3,054,247 

Additions -  -  -  207  1, 055  -  77  40  174,202  175,581 

Write-offs -  -  -  (5)  (68)  -  -  -  -  (73) 

Disposals -  -  -  (16)  (18)  (201)  -  -  -  (235) 

Reclassifications between groups -  92  -  1,398  (90)  1,329,353  -  32  (1,330,785)  - 

Reclassification to intangible assets 

(Note 4)   -  

-  

-  -  -  

 

- 

 

-  -  (63)  (63) 

Revaluation  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Depreciation -  (110)  (782)  (27,365)  (42,044)  (12,615)  (124)  (29)  -  (83,069) 

Net book amount at 31 December 

2012 5,737  

 

1,420 

 

10,371  511,539  1,289,502  

 

1,316,537 

 

296  215  10,771  3,146,388 

                    

Net book amount at 31 December 

2012 
  

  
  

    
  

 
 

 
 

 
  

Cost or revalued amount 5,737  1,686  13,123  702,998  1,918,485  1,329,152  4,270  28,787  10,771  4,015,009 

Accumulated depreciation  -  (115)  (1,528)  (190,690)  (551,832)  (12,615)  (3,943)  (27,844)  -  (788,567) 

Accumulated impairment -  (151)  (1,224)  (769)  (77,151)  -                (31) (728)  -  (80,054) 

Net book amount at 31 December 

2012 5,737  1,420 

 

10,371  511,539  1,289,502  

 

1,316,537 

 

           296 215  10,771  3,146,388 
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5 Property, plant, and equipment (continued) 
 
As described in Note 3, in 2012 no independent valuation was performed for the Company’s property, plant and equipment 
carried at revalued amount.  
 
In December 2011, independent valuation of the Company’s property, plant and equipment carried at revalued amount was 
performed. The total effect of revaluation amounted to LTL 2,372 thousand and was recognised as follows: 
 
 Increase in other 

comprehensive income and 

equity under revaluation 

reserve  

(Expenses) 

recognised in 

profit or loss  

 
 

 Total revaluation 

effect 

 

 

 2,653 (281)  2,372 

 
The Group’s property, plant and equipment amounting to LTL 403,799 thousand was pledged to the bank as collateral as of 
31 December 2012 (31 December 2011: LTL 422,627 thousand). The Company’s property, plant and equipment amounting 
to LTL 402,322 thousand was pledged to the bank as collateral (31 December 2011: LTL 413,364 thousand). 
 
In 2012, the Group capitalised interest expenses of LTL 22,710 thousand (2011: LTL 30,764 thousand) at an average 
capitalisation rate of 2.23 per cent (2011: 3.95 per cent) on borrowings related to the development of non-current assets. 
 
Net book amounts of property, plant and equipment acquired by the Group under financial lease contracts as at 31 
December 2012 and 31 December 2011 were as follows: 
 
Category of PP&E At 31 December 

2012 
 At 31 December 

2011 

    
Plant and machinery 2,405  2,829 
Motor vehicles 109  75 

Total 2,514  2,904 

 
As of 31 December 2011, the Group’s/Company’s contractual commitments to acquire or construct property, plant and 
equipment amounted to LTL 115m. As of 31 December 2012, the Group/Company had no significant commitments.   
 
The table below presents the carrying amounts of the Company’s and the Group’s property, plant and equipment that would 
have been recognised if the cost method had been used in accounting for assets as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 
2011: 
 

Group 

Land 

 

Buildings  

 

Structures 

and 

equipment   

 Structures 
and 

equipment 

of Hydro 

Power 

Plant and 

Pumped 

Storage 

Power 

Plant 

  
 

 

Structures 

and 

equipment 

of Reserve 

Power 

Plant   

  

 
 

 

 

     

Combined-

cycle block 

 

Motor 

vehicles  
Other 

PP&E   

Construc-

tion in 

progress  Total  
At 31 December 

2012  

 

 

 

   

    

        

Net book amount 5,867  10,939  13,095  511,539  1,289,502  1,316,537  826  24,332  12,147  3,184,784 

At 31 December 

2011  

 

 

 

   

    

        

Net book amount  5,867  11,063  15,525  537,320  1,330,667  -  911  30,279  1,167,520  3,099,152 

 
 

Company 

Land 

 

Buildin

gs  

 

Structures 

and 

equipment   

 Structures 

and 

equipment 

of Hydro 

Power Plant 
and Pumped 

Storage 

Power Plant 

  

 

 

Structures 

and 

equipment 

of Reserve 
Power 

Plant   

  

 

 

 

 

     

Combined-

cycle block 

 

Motor 

vehicles  
Other 

PP&E   

Constructio

n in 

progress  Total  
At 31 December 

2012  

 

 

 

   

    

        

Net book amount 5,867  191  2,466  511,539  1,289,502  1,316,537  343  266  10,771  3,137,482 

At 31 December 

2011  

 

 

 

   

    

        

Net book amount  5,867  100  2,669  537,320  1,330,667  -  361  238  1,167,417  3,044,639 
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6 Investment property 
 

  Group   Company 

At 31 December 2010     

Cost   2,143  2,143 

Accumulated depreciation   (291)  (291) 

Net book amount at 31 December 2010  1,852  1,852 

     

Year ended 31 December 2011     

Opening net book amount  1,852  1,852 

Depreciation charge  (28)  (28) 

Net book amount at 31 December 2011  1,824  1,824 

     

At 31 December 2011     

Cost   2,143  2,143 

Accumulated depreciation   (319)  (319) 

Net book amount at 31 December 2011  1,824  1,824 

     

Year ended 31 December 2012     

Opening net book amount  1,824  1,824 

In-kind contribution for the acquisition of additionally issued 
shares of the associate (Note 7)   

 (1,824) 
 

(1,824) 

Reclassifications from property, plant and equipment (Note 5)  800  - 

Depreciation charge  -  - 

Net book amount at 31 December 2012  800  - 

     

At 31 December 2012     

Cost   800  - 

Accumulated depreciation   -  - 

Net book amount at 31 December 2012  800  - 

 

As estimated by the Company and based on observable market data, the fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s 
investment property as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 approximated its net book value. 

 

In 2012, the Group and the Company had no income from lease of investment property. In 2011, the Group’s and the 
Company’s income from lease of investment property amounted to LTL 16 thousand and LTL 137 thousand, respectively. 
The average maturity term of lease contracts was 1 year as at 31 December 2011. 
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7 Investments 
 
As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Company had direct control over the following subsidiaries:  
 
 
Subsidiary 
  
At 31 December 2012   Cost  Impairment   

 
Carrying 
amount 

        
Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB   43,601  -  43,601 
Kauno Energetikos Remontas UAB   31,341  (21,041)  10,300 
Energijos Tiekimas UAB   750  -  750 

Total   75,692  (21,041)  54,651 

      
Subsidiary 
 
At 31 December 2011 

 

Cost  Impairment   

 
Carrying 
amount  

        
Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB  43,601  -  43,601  
Kauno Energetikos Remontas UAB  31,341  (21,041)  10,300  
Energijos Tiekimas UAB  750  -  750  

Total  75,692  (21,041)  54,651  

 
Movements of investments in subsidiaries for the periods ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 were as follows: 
 

 

  

 Company 
at 

 31 December 
2012 

 Company 
at 31 

December 
2011 

       
Carrying amount as at 1 January    54,651  23,897 

Acquisition and increase in share capital of 
subsidiaries    -  43,601 

Disposal of subsidiaries (by contribution to the 
share capital of associates)     -  (12,847) 

Carrying amount at 31 December    54,651  54,651 

 
Acquisition of additional shares of Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centro UAB and disposal of Data Logistic Centras 
UAB 
 
On 23 December 2011, the Company and Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB signed an Agreement for the Subscription 
of Shares, based on which Lietuvos Energija AB subscribed for 32,163,004 newly issued ordinary registered shares of 
Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB with par value of LTL 1 each. The total issue price was equal to LTL 34,414 thousand 
and it was paid by in-kind contribution of 12,847,295 ordinary registered intangible shares of Data Logistics Center UAB 
with par value of LTL 1 each, which made up 100% of the latter company‘s authorised share capital, with the carrying 
amount of LTL 12,847 thousand as at 31 December 2011. On the date of acquisition, Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB 
was an associate of Lietuvos Energija AB. As a result of this transaction, the Company‘s ownership interest in Technologijų 
ir Inovacijų Centras UAB increased from 20.72% to 54.04%. 
 
As a result of acquisition, control was obtained over the associate Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB and public 
enterprise Respublikinis Energetikų Mokymo Centras (controlled through Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB). The 

acquisition of these companies was recognised as at 31 December 2011 and the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
acquired were as follows: 
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7 Investments (continued) 
 
 

  

Carrying amounts (in LTL) 

  Technologijų 
ir Inovacijų 
Centras UAB 

 Respublikinis 
Energetikų 

Mokymo 
Centras VŠĮ 

Total 

      
Non-current intangible assets (Note 4)  3,092  - 3,092 

Property, plant and equipment (Note 5)  24,201  186 24,387 

Investments in subsidiaries and associates  36,255  - 36,255 

Inventories  212  62 274 

Current accounts receivable  2,474  275 2,749 

Cash and cash equivalents  11,771  177 11,948 

Non-current liabilities  (179)  (95) (274) 

Deferred income tax liabilities   (1,070)  - (1,070) 

Current accounts payable and other liabilities  (6,087)  (1,741) (7,828) 

Net assets acquired  70,669  (1,136) 69,533 

Purchase consideration: 

    

(43,354) 

Paid as in-kind contribution by subsidiary’s shares 

    

(34,414) 

Associate’s net assets disposed      (8,940) 

Difference accounted in equity attributable to:     26,179 

Owners of the Company     (5,778) 

Non-controlling interest     31,957 

 
Merger of Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB and Data Logistics Center UAB 
 
On 20 August 2012, the Board of Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB (TIC) together with the Board of Data Logistics 
Center UAB (DLC) approved the reorganisation terms and conditions for TIC and DLC. The reorganisation terms and 
conditions provided for that DLC, which will cease its activities following the reorganisation, and TIC, which will continue its 
activities following the reorganisation, will be reorganised by way of merger as stipulated in paragraph 3 of Art. 2.97 of the 
Lithuanian Civil Code, where DLC will be merged with TIC in a way that all the assets, rights and obligations of DLC will be 
transferred to TIC following the reorganisation.   
 
On 2 October 2012, an Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB was held, 
during which the shareholders approved the terms and conditions of reorganisation and appropriate amendments to the 
Articles of Association. On 31 October 2012, Data Logistics Center UAB was merged with Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras 
UAB. This  merger had no impact on the Group‘s financial statements.   
 
 
AB Lietuvos Energija and AB Lietuvos Elektrinė  
 
AB Lietuvos Energija AB and AB Lietuvos Elektrinė AB were reorganised by way of merger pursuant to paragraph 4 of Article 
2.97 of the Lithuanian Civil Code by merging the companies under reorganisation, which ceased their activities as legal 
entities after the reorganisation, into Lietuvos Energija AB, which continues the activities of reorganised companies after the 
reorganisation and to which all assets, rights and obligations of the companies under reorganisation were transferred, i.e. a 
new legal entity Lietuvos Energija AB was formed which continues its activities on the basis of companies which ceased their 
activities. 
 
On 21 July 2011, Lietuvos Energija AB was registered with the Register of Legal Entities. The Company‘s code is 
302648707, VAT payer‘s code is LT100006256115. Lietuvos Energija AB was established as a result of implementation of 

the National Energy Strategy, i.e. as a result of reorganisation by way of merger of two public companies: Lietuvos Energija 
AB, company code 220551550, including its branch offices Kruonis Pumped Storage Power Plant, Kaunas Hydro Power 
Plant, and Lietuvos Elektrinė AB, company code 110870933. 
 
The merger of companies took place on 1 September 2010, i.e. on the date when AB Lietuvos Energija obtained control 
over AB Lietuvos Elektrinė.  
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7 Investments (continued) 
 
A public enterprise Respublikinis Energetikų Mokymo Centras VŠĮ is a non-profit public legal entity of limited civil liability 
founded according to the procedure prescribed by the Law on Public Establishments. In accordance with decisions passed at 
the General Shareholder Meeting held on 28 September 2010, on 27 October 2010 Lietuvos Energija AB concluded the 
purchase-sale agreement with Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB and disposed all the shares in Respublikinis Energetikų 
Mokymo Centras VŠĮ. 
 
On 31 October 2012, the Company and NT Valdos UAB signed the Agreement for the Subscription of Shares, based on 
which Lietuvos Energija AB subscribed for 37,790 newly issued ordinary registered shares of NT Valdos UAB with par value 
of LTL 100 each. The total issue price amounting to LTL 3,779,000 was paid by in-kind contribution of immovable and 
movable property. Following this transaction, the Company‘s ownership interests in NT Valdos UAB increased by 0.64% and 
totalled 41.74 as of 31 December 2012.   
 
Structure of the Group’s investments in the associates and the joint venture as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 
2011 was as follows: 

 

Group 
At 31 December 2012  Cost   

Ownership 
interest (%)  

 Impairment and 
equity method 

 

Carrying 
amount 

        
NT Valdos UAB  132,560  42.32  (7706)  124,854 
Nordic Energy Link AS  21,175  25.00  4,287  25,462 
Geoterma UAB  7,396  23.44  (4,229)  3,167 
Enmašas UAB  20  33.33  (7)  13 

Total  161,151    (7,655)  153,496 

 

Group 
At 31 December 2011  Cost   

Ownership 
interest (%)  

 Impairment 
and equity 

method 

 

Carrying 
amount 

        
NT Valdos UAB  128,781  41.70  (9,152)  119,629 
Nordic Energy Link AS  21,175  25.00  2,925  24,100 
Geoterma UAB  7,396  23.44  (4,172)  3,224 
Enmašas UAB  20  33.33  (7)  13 

Total  157,372    (10,406)  146,966 

 
Structure of the Company’s investments in the associates and the joint venture as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 
2011 was as follows: 

 

Company 
At 31 December 2012  Cost   

Ownership 
interest (%)  

 Impairment and 
equity method  

Carrying 
amount 

         
NT Valdos UAB  130,720  41.74  -  130,720 
Nordic Energy Link AS  21,175  25.00  -  21,175 
Geoterma UAB  7,396  23.44  (3,864)  3,532 

Total  159,291    (3,864)  155,427 

 

Company 
At 31 December 2011  Cost   

Ownership 
interest (%)  

 Impairment and 
equity method  

Carrying 
amount 

         
NT Valdos UAB  126,941  41.10  -  126,941 
Nordic Energy Link AS  21,175  25.00  -  21,175 
Geoterma UAB  7,396  23.44  (3,864)  3,532 

Total  155,512    (3,864)  151,648 

 

The financial position of the associates and the joint venture as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 and the 
results of their operation for the years then ended were as follows (unaudited): 

 
At 31 December 2012  

 

Assets 

 

Liabilities 

 

Sales revenue 

 Net profit 
(loss) for the 

year 
         
NT Valdos UAB  312,900  18,213  53,337  1,382 
Nordic Energy Link AS  279,511  182,846  48,153  5,449 
Geoterma UAB  45,480  11,665  16,994  (242) 
Enmašas UAB *  -  -  -  - 
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7 Investments (continued) 
 
At 31 December 2011   

Assets 

 

Liabilities 

 

Sales revenue 

 Net profit 
(loss) for the 

year 
         
NT Valdos UAB  298,932  10,113  54,997  (17,149) 
Nordic Energy Link AS  294,810  203,594  47,683  4,043 
Geoterma UAB  49,408  13,870  13,396  96 
Enmašas UAB *  -  -  -  - 

 
*- at the date of signing these financial statements, the financial statements of this company for a corresponding period 
were not presented. On 25 September 2009, Enmašas UAB was given the status of a company in liquidation. 

 
Movements of investments in the associates and the joint venture during the periods ended 31 December 2012 and 31 
December 2011 were as follows:  
 
 

 
Group 

at 31 December 
2012 

 
Company 

at 31 December 
2012 

 
Group 

at 31 December 
2011 

 Company 
at 31 

December 
2011 

        
Carrying amount at 1 January 146,966  151,648  162,719  160,836 

Acquisition of additional shares of Technologijų 
ir Inovacijų Centras UAB  -  -  (8,940)  (9,188) 

Acquisition of associates 3,779  3,779  1,840  - 

Impairment of investments -  -  (916)  - 

Share of other comprehensive income of 
associates and joint ventures arising on 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment 65  -  657  - 

Share of changes of associates and joint 
ventures recognised directly in equity -  -  (2,346)  - 

Share of result of operations of associates and 
joint ventures, (loss)/profit 2,686  -  (6,048)  - 

Carrying amount at 31 December 153,496  155,427  146,966  151,648 

 
 
8 Other non-current assets 
 
The Group‘s and the Company‘s other non-current assets comprise as follows: 
 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2011 

        

Right to receive emission allowances in future  33,498  33,498               18,826                18,826  

Less: impairment (9,775)  (9,775)  (9,169)  (9,169) 

Carrying amount at 31 December 23,723  23,723  9,657  9,657 

 
As at 31 December 2011, 400,000 emission allowances were lent under the provisions of the lending agreement signed on 
1 December 2009 with STX Services BV. The agreement expires in 2012. On 16 April 2012, additional 650,000 emission 
allowances were lent under the provisions of the lending agreement signed on 13 April 2012 with CF Partners (UK) LLP, 
which expires on 28 February 2014. Impairment of emission allowances was estimated with reference to the market prices 
of emission allowances as at 31 December 2012. 
 
  



LIETUVOS ENERGIJA, AB 
Company code 302648707, Elektrinės g. 21, LT-26108 Elektrėnai 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 
All amounts in LTL thousands unless otherwise stated 

 
 

97 
 

9 Inventories 
 
The Group‘s and the Company‘s inventories comprise as follows: 
 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2011 

        

Heavy fuel oil 54,434  54,434  118,185  118,185 

Spare parts  11,600  11,600  10,148  10,148 

Materials  6,804  4,577  6,833  4,999 

Goods for resale 1,096  1,096  1,126  1,126 

Less: write-down to net realisable value  (10,298)  (10,280)  (10,755)  (10,737) 

 
Carrying amount 63,636  61,427  125,537  123,721 

 
The cost of the Group’s and the Company’s inventories carried at net realisable value as at 31 December 2012 amounted to 
LTL 11,431 thousand and LTL 11,410 thousand, respectively (31 December 2011: LTL 12,682 thousand and LTL 12,661 
thousand, respectively). 
 
The Group‘s inventories expensed during the period ended 31 December 2012 amounted to LTL 141,359 thousand (2011: 
LTL 19,527 thousand). The Company‘s inventories expensed during the period ended 31 December 2012 amounted to LTL 
129,739 thousand (2011: LTL 7,172 thousand). 
 
Movements in impairment of inventories during the periods ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 are shown in 
the table below: 
 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011 

 Company 
at 31 

December 2011 

        

Impairment of inventories at 1 January 10,755  10,737  9,141  9,141 

Write-down of inventories during the reporting 
period 1,217  1,217  2,229  2,229 

Write-off of impairment (94)  (94)  (35)  (35) 

Acquisition of impairment upon acquisition of 
subsidiary  -  -  18  - 

Reversal of inventory write-down (1,580)  (1,580)  (598)  (598) 

Impairment of inventories at 31 December 10,298  10,280  10,755  10,737 

 
The impairment charge and reversal of inventory write-down were included in operating expenses in the statement of 
comprehensive income. In 2012, the Group/Company made additional write-downs to net realisable value for obsolete and 
slow-moving spare parts stored at the warehouse.  
 
As at 31 December 2012, inventories pledged as collateral by the Group/Company amounted to LTL 6,000 thousand (31 
December 2011: LTL 26,000 thousand) (Note 19). 
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10 Trade receivables 
 
The Group‘s and the Company‘s trade receivables comprise as follows: 
 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2011 

        

Unbilled accrued revenue from electricity sales* 159,180  159,180  96,030  96,030 

Receivables for sales of electricity in Lithuania  119,754  98,350  130,081  117,075 

Receivables for repair and design works 10,878  -  9,310  - 

Receivables for sales of thermal energy   7,609  7,609  4,289  4,289 

Other trade receivables 7,546  47  6,386  -  

Receivables for exported electricity 2,213  2,213  604  604 

Total 307,180  267,399  246,700  217,998 

        

Less: allowance for doubtful receivables  (18,325)  (13,483)  (13,221)  (10,500) 

Carrying amount 288,855  253,916  233,479  207,498 

 

*As described in Note 3, in 2012 the Group/Company recognised additional amount of LTL 15,061 thousand (2011: LTL 
96,030 thousand) in relation to receivable PSO service fees as a compensation of differences in gas prices in 2011, and 
additional amount of LTL 48,089 thousand in relation to PSO service fees allocated for the construction of the Combined-
cycle block. All these amounts were received in 2013. 

 

The fair values of trade receivables approximate their carrying amounts. 

 
Movements in impairment of trade receivables during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 were as 
follows: 
 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2011 

        

Carrying amount at 1 January 13,221  10,500  12,671  9,612 

Reversal of impairment of doubtful trade 
receivables  (185)  -  (1,130)  - 

Acquisition of impairment upon acquisition of 
the subsidiary  -  -  72  - 

Recognised as doubtful receivables during the 
reporting period 5,289  2,983  1,608  888 

 
Carrying amount at 31 December 18,325  13,483  13,221  10,500 

 
The impairment charge of doubtful receivables was included in other operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive 
income. 
 
As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables, in respect of which 
impairment was recognised, mostly comprised trade receivables from Ekranas AB (LTL 9,612 thousand) which was bankrupt 
as of the date of preparation of the financial statements. 
 
The ageing analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables not past due or past due but not impaired is as 
follows:  
 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2011 

        

Not past due 283,113  253,630  224,721  203,168 

Past due up to 30 days 3,537  284  6,928  4,330 

Past due from 30 to 60 days 833  2  578  - 

Past due from 60 to 90 days 457  -  895                        -  

Past due over 90 days 915  -  357                        -  

 
Carrying amount 288,855  253,916  233,479  207,498 
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11 Other accounts receivable 
 
The Group‘s and the Company‘s other non-current accounts receivable comprised as follows:  
 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2011 

        

Unbilled accrued revenue for sales of electricity* 9,103  9,103  -  - 

Receivables for emission allowances lent 1,115  1,115  626  626 

Receivables for apartments 709  709  800  800 

Total 10,927  10,927  1,426  1,426 
 
Receivables for emission allowances lent represent future proceeds under the lending agreement signed with STX BV and CF 
Partners (UK) LLP. Receivables were estimated at the present value of future payments  
 
*As described in Note 3, in 2012 the Group/Company accounted for LTL 9,103 thousand amount relating to PSO service 
fees receivable due to compensation of the difference in variable costs.   
 
The Group‘s and the Company‘s current other accounts receivable comprised as follows:  
 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2011 

        

VAT receivable 12,691  12,691  3,725  3,632 

Grants receivable for Syderiu project 4,930  4,930  1,017  1,017 

Excise duty on heavy fuel oil receivable  3,115  3,115  -  - 

Other receivables 3,142  2,898  3,855  3,089 

Grant for emission allowances receivable  1,380  1,380  -  - 

Receivables for IT and telecommunications 
services 306  306  325  325 

Loan granted to Kauno Energetikos Remontas 
UAB  -  -  -  6,500 

 25,564  25,320  8,922  14,563 

        

Less: allowance for doubtful receivables (1,771)  (1,771)  (1,915)  (1,915) 

 

Carrying amount 23,793  23,549  7,007  12,648 

 
 
 
On 28 January 2010, the credit line agreement was signed based on which Kauno Energetikos Remontas UAB was granted a 
credit line for the amount of LTL 2,500 thousand. According to this agreement, the annual interest rate of 6.33 per cent was 
payable on any withdrawn amount of the credit line until 30 April 2010. With effect from 1 May 2010, the annual interest 
rate is set as three-month VILIBOR plus 3.5 per cent margin. The credit repayment date provided for in the agreement was 
31 December 2010. On 23 December 2010, an additional arrangement to the agreement was signed under which the limit 
of the credit line was established at LTL 6,500 thousand and the final repayment date of the credit was extended until 31 
December 2012. In addition, Kauno Energetikos Remontas UAB assumed a commitment to pledge real estate with a market 
value equal to or exceeding the amount of the credit line for the benefit of Lietuvos Energija AB. Kauno Energetikos 
Remontas UAB also committed not to borrow from third parties and not to pledge assets or any non-property rights for the 
benefit of such third parties without a prior written consent of Lietuvos Energija AB. The credit was repaid in 2012, and the 
credit line agreement had expired as of 31 December 2012.  
 
On 8 January 2010, the Company signed a credit line agreement with its subsidiary Energijos Tiekimas UAB for the amount 
of LTL 7,300 thousand, which expired on 31 December 2011. No amount had been withdrawn from the credit line as of 31 
December 2011.    
 
Movements in impairment of doubtful other accounts receivable during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 
December 2011 were as follows: 
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11 Other accounts receivable (continued) 
 

 Group 
at 31 

December 
2012 

 Company 
at 31 

December 
2012 

 Group 
at 31 

December 
2011 

 Company 
at 31 

December 
2011 

        
Carrying amount at 1 January 1,915  1,915  1,400  1,400 

Reversal of impairment (144)  (144)  (14)  (14) 

Write-off of doubtful receivables  -  -  (1)  (1) 

Recognised as doubtful receivables during the 
reporting period -  -  530  530 

Carrying amount at 31 December 1,771  1,771  1,915  1,915 

 
The impairment charge was included in other operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 
The ageing analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s other current accounts receivable not past due or past due but not 
impaired is as follows:  
 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2011 

        

Not past due 23,726  23,482  6,983  12,624 

Past due up to 30 days 67  67  24  24 

Carrying amount 23,793  23,549  7,007  12,648 

 
The fair value of other current accounts receivable approximates their carrying amount. 

 
12 Cash and cash equivalents   
 
The Group‘s and the Company‘s cash and cash equivalents comprised as follows:  
 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2011 

        

Cash at bank and in hand 33,055  6,867  24,508  4,882 

Overnight deposit at Swedbank AB (contract 
currency LTL)  1,290  1,290  3,399  3,399 

Carrying amount 34,345  8,157  27,907  8,281 

 
The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s cash and short-term deposits approximates their carrying amount. 
 
According to the loan agreement signed with DnB NORD Bankas AB, the Group pledged to the bank its current and future 
cash inflows into the bank account (Note 19). As of 31 December 2012, the balance with DnB NORD Bank AB pledged 
amounted to LTL 11 thousand (31 December 2011: LTL 362 thousand). 
 
According to the syndicated loan agreement signed with Swedbank AB, SEB Bankas AB, Nordea Bank Finland Plc, Lithuania 
branch and DnB NORD Bankas AB, the Group pledged current and future cash inflows into the accounts at these banks 
(Note 19). The cash balance in these accounts amounted to LTL 11 thousand as of 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011: 
LTL 422 thousand). 
 
 
For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise as follows: 
 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011 

 Company 
at 31 

December 2011 

        

Cash and cash equivalents 34,345  8,157  27,907  8,281 

Bank overdrafts (Note 19) (63,890)  (57,428)  (6,557)  (5,388) 

Carrying amount (29,545)  (49,271)  21,350  2,893 
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13 Non-current assets held for sale 
 

 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2011 

        

Non-current assets of  Kauno Energetikos 
Remontas UAB  

603  - 
 

1,740  - 

Non-current assets acquired from Kauno 
Energetikos Remontas UAB  

-  - 
 

1,543  1,543 

 603  -  3,283  1,543 

 
Non-current assets held for sale comprise buildings, which are expected to be sold by the Group/Company in 2013.  
 
 
14 Share capital and share premium 
 
Lietuvos Energija AB started its activities on 1 September 2011 following the reorganisation by way of merger of AB 
Lietuvos Energija and AB Lietuvos Elektrinė. On the date of merger, the authorised share capital of AB Lietuvos Energija 
amounted to LTL 489,282,926 and was divided into 489,282,926 ordinary registered shares with the par value of LTL 1 
each, whereas the authorised share capital of AB Lietuvos Elektrinė amounted to LTL 145,800,689 and was divided into 
145,800,689 ordinary registered shares with the par value of LTL 1 each. Following the reorganisation, the authorised share 
capitals of both companies were merged. The shares of companies were exchanged into the shares of Lietuvos Energija AB 
as follows: 1.28 shares of the new Company in exchange for 1 share of AB Lietuvos Energija, and 1.37 shares of the new 
Company in exchange for 1 share of AB Lietuvos Elektrinė. The procedure of share exchange was defined in the Terms and 
Conditions of Reorganisation of AB Lietuvos Energija and AB Lietuvos Elektrinė, which were approved by the decision of the 
Board during the meeting held on 11 May 2011. 
 
As of 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Company’s share capital amounted to LTL 635,083,615 and it was 
divided into 635,083,615 ordinary registered shares with the par value of LTL 1 each. All the shares are fully paid. The 
shares of Lietuvos Energija AB have been listed on the Main List of NASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange since 1 September 
2011. The highest share price at the Stock Exchange trading session in 2012 was EUR 0.455 per share, and the lowest 
share price was EUR 0.373 per share. The total number of shareholders as at 31 December 2012 was 6,406. 
 
 
The shareholders’ structure of the Company is as follows: 
 

 
Share capital 

at 31 December 2012 
 Share capital  

at 31 December 2011 

Shareholders (LTL)  %  (LTL)  % 

Visagino Atominė Elektrinė AB 610,515,515  96.13  610,515,515  96.13 
Other shareholders 24,568,100  3.87  24,568,100  3.87 

Total 635,083,615  100.00  635,083,615  100.00 

 
As of 31 December 2012, Visagino Atominė Elektrinė UAB was wholly owned (100%) by the State of Lithuania represented 
by the Lithuanian Ministry of Energy.  

 

 
Share capital 

 
Share premium 

 
(shares) 

 
(shares) 

 
(LTL) 

 
(LTL) 

 
2012  

 
2011  

 
2012  

 
2011  

        Number of shares at the beginning of 
the period 635,083,615 

 
635,083,615 

 
295,767,304 

 
295,767,304 

        

Number of shares at the end of the 
period 635,083,615 

 
635,083,615 

 
295,767,304 

 
295,767,304 
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15 Revaluation reserve 
  

Revaluation reserve comprises increase in value on revaluation of property, plant and equipment. 
 

Group 

 

Revaluation 
reserve 

 

Deferred 
income tax  

 

Net of 
deferred 

income tax 

       
Balance at 31 December 2010 

 
10,098   (1,515)   8,583 

Depreciation of revaluation reserve 

 
(882) 

 
82 

 
(800) 

Increase in revaluation reserve 

 
6,589 

 
(988) 

 
5,601 

Other adjustments 

 
351 

 
- 

 
351 

Balance at 31 December 2011 

 
16,156 

 
(2,421) 

 
13,735 

       
Balance at 31 December 2011 

 
16,156 

 
(2,421) 

 
13,735 

Depreciation of revaluation reserve 

 
(1,264) 

 
110 

 
(1,154) 

Adjustment of revaluation reserve 

 
(619) 

 
93 

 
(526) 

Balance at 31 December 2012 

 
14,273 

 
(2,218) 

 
12,055 

 

Company 

 

Revaluation 
reserve 

 

Deferred 
income tax  

 

Net of 
deferred 

income tax 

       Balance at 31 December 2010 

 
7,770 

 
(1,166) 

 
6,604 

Depreciation of revaluation reserve 

 
(546) 

 

82 

 

(464) 

Increase in revaluation reserve 

 
2,653 

 
(398) 

 
2,255 

Balance at 31 December 2011 

 
9,877 

 
(1,482) 

 
8,395 

       Balance at 31 December 2011 

 
9,877 

 
(1,482) 

 
8,395 

Depreciation of revaluation reserve 

 
(731) 

 
110 

 
(621) 

Balance at 31 December 2012 

 
9,146 

 
(1,372) 

 
7,774 

 
 
16 Legal reserve 
 
The legal reserve is a compulsory reserve under the Lithuanian legislation. Annual transfers of not less than 5 per cent of 
net profit are required until the reserve reaches 10 per cent of the share capital.  
 

As of 31 December 2012, the Group’s legal reserve amounted to LTL 36,145 thousand and the Company’s legal reserve 
amounted to LTL 35,867 thousand (31 December 2011: LTL 35,972 thousand and LTL 35,867 thousand, respectively).In 
2012, the Group‘s subsidiaries transferred in total LTL 173 thousand to the legal reserve. 
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17 Other reserves 
 
The Group‘s and the Company‘s other reserves comprised as follows:  
 

Group/Company 

Reserve for share 
capital reduction  
due to transfer of 

heavy fuel oil 
storage facilities 

 

Reserve for 
investments 

 

Non-current 
asset-related 

reserves 

 

Total  

  

Balance at 31 December 2010 (63,777)  116,883  664,669  717,775 

Reserves utilised -  -  -  - 

Balance at 31 December 2011 (63,777)  116,883  664,669  717,775 

        

Balance at 31 December 2011 (63,777)  116,883  664,669  717,775 

Reserves utilised -  -  -  - 

Balance at 31 December 2012 (63,777)  116,883  664,669  717,775 

 
Upon the transition to IFRS on 1 January 2004, the Company’s equity increased by LTL 721,107 thousand. In order to 
impose restrictions on the ability to distribute this increase, a non-current assets-related reserve was established. As of 31 
December 2012 and 2011, the amount of this reserve attributable to the owners of the Company was LTL 664,669 
thousand. 
 
As of 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Company’s reserve for investments amounted to LTL 116,883 thousand. It was 
established to accumulate funds for the construction and development of non-current assets. A decision on the use of these 
funds is to be made by the shareholders. 
 
The reserve for the share capital due to the transfer of heavy fuel oil storage facilities is the negative reserve for the 
reduction of the share capital, which was established in 1999 as a result of the transfer of heavy fuel oil storage facilities to 
VĮ Vilniaus Mazuto Saugykla. Although expected, the share capital has not been reduced by this amount until now.  
 
 
18 Dividends per share 
 
In 2012, the Company‘s shareholders made no decisions in relation to payment of dividends.   
 
The Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of Lietuvos Energija AB was held on 29 April 2011 and resolved to pay out 
dividends of LTL 0.182 per share from retained earnings as at 1 January 2011 
 
 
    At 31 

  

  December 
2011 

  

   

Amount of dividends (LTL'000)    89,050 

Weighted average number of shares (units)    635,083,615 

Dividends per share (LTL)  
 

 
0.14 
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19 Borrowings 
 
The Group‘s and the Company‘s borrowings by maturity term:  
 

 
Group  Company  Group  Company 

 
at 31  at 31  at 31  at 31 

 

December 
2012 

 December 
2012 

 December 2011 
(restated) 

 December 2011 
(restated) 

Non-current borrowings 

       Syndicated loan (Swedbank AB, 
SEB Bankas AB, Nordea Bank Finland 
Plc, Lithuania Branch and DnB NORD 
Bankas AB,) in EUR, to be repaid by 1 
April 2018 59,940 

 
59,940 

 
- 

 
- 

Loan from the European Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development, in 
EUR, to be repaid by 18 February 2025 224,720 

 
224,720 

 
245,149 

 
245,149 

Syndicated loan (Swedbank AB, 
SEB Bankas AB, Nordea Bank Finland 
Plc, Lithuania Branch, DnB NORD 
Bankas AB and Danske Bank A/S, 
Lithuania Branch) in EUR, to be repaid 
by 3 June 2016 259,438 

 
259,438 

 
- 

 
- 

Loand from Nordea Bank Finland, 
Lithuania branch, EUR, to be repaid by 
1 December 2017 8,272  -  -  - 

Loan from DnB NORD AB, in EUR, 
to be repaid by 1 May 2013 - 

 
- 

 
1,857 

 
1,857 

Total non-current borrowings 552,370 
 

544,098 
 

247,006 
 

247,006 

        Current borrowings 

       Syndicated loan (Swedbank AB, 
SEB Bankas AB, Nordea Bank Finland 
Plc Lithuania Branch and DnB NORD 
Bankas AB) in EUR, to be repaid by 1 
April 2018 14,253 

 
14,253 

 
89,635 

 
89,635 

      Overdrafts 63,890 
 

57,428 
 

6,557 
 

5,388 

Nordea Finance Lithuania UAB, in LTL, 
to be repaid by 27 March 2013   3,155  -  -  - 
Nordea Bank Finland Lithuania branch, 
in EUR, to be repaid by 1 December 
2017   300  -  -  - 

Loan from DnB NORD AB, in EUR, 
to be repaid by 1 May 2013 1,857 

 
1,857 

 
3,714 

 
3,714 

Credit line from Swedbank AB, 
maturity date – 1 March 2012 - 

 
- 

 
13,000 

 
13,000 

Syndicated loan (Swedbank AB, 
SEB Bankas AB, Nordea Bank Finland 
Plc Lithuania branch, DnB NORD 
Bankas AB, Danske Bank A/S Lithuania 
branch) in EUR, to be repaid by 3 June 
2016   21,620  21,620  281,058  281,058 

Loan from the European Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development, in 
EUR, to be repaid by 18 February 2025 20,429  20,429  -  - 

Loan from the European Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development, 
accrued interest 905 

 
905 

 
1,196 

 
1,196 

Total current borrowings 126,409 
 

116,492 
 

395,160 
 

393,991 

 
As of 31 December 2012, the Group’s non-current and current borrowings comprised as follows: 

 
On 1 July 2003, a loan agreement was concluded with the bank DnB NORD AB for the amount of EUR 3,765 thousand 

(LTL 13,000 thousand) and the repayment date of 1 May 2013. 
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19 Borrowings (continued) 
 
On 30 June 2004, a loan agreement and related amendments were concluded with Swedbank AB, SEB AB, Nordea Bank 

Finland Plc, Lithuania Branch and DnB NORD AB for the amount of EUR 38,000 thousand (LTL 131,206 thousand) and the 
repayment date of 1 April 2018.  

On 31 March 2010, a loan agreement was concluded with Swedbank AB, SEB AB, Nordea Bank Finland Plc, Lithuania 
Branch, DnB NORD AB and Danske Bank A/S for the amount of EUR 81,400 thousand (LTL 281,058 thousand) and the 
repayment date of 3 June 2016.  

On 18 February 2010, an agreement was concluded with the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development for 
the loan of EUR 71,000 thousand (LTL 245,149 thousand) and the repayment date of 18 February 2025. 

The overdraft limit granted by Danske Bank A/S, Lithuania branch amounted to LTL 10,000 thousand. The overdraft 
agreement expired on 28 March 2012. On 2 February 2012, the term of the agreement was extended until 28 March 2013, 
and the overdraft limit was increased up to LTL 15m. As of 31 December 2012, the undrawn balance of overdraft was LTL 
8,538 thousand.  

On 30 March 2011, the overdraft limit granted by Danske Bank A/S, Lithuania branch amounted to LTL 17,000 
thousand. The overdraft agreement expired on 30 July 2012. On 27 July 2012, the term of the agreement was extended 
until 1 December 2012. As of 31 December 2012, the term of the agreement had expired.   

The total limit of overdraft granted by Swedbank AB was LTL 13,000 thousand. The overdraft agreement expired on 1 
March 2012. As of 31 December 2012, the term of the agreement had expired.   

On 15 November 2012, the overdraft agreement was signed with SEB Bankas AB for the amount of LTL 160,000 
thousand. The overdraft agreement is valid until 18 November 2013. As of 31 December 2012, the undrawn balance of 
overdraft was LTL 102,572 thousand.   

In 2012, a credit agreement was signed with Nordea Bank Finland, Lithuania branch for the amount of EUR 2,896 
thousand. As of 31 December 2012, the withdrawn balance amounted to EUR 2,482 thousand. The agreement expires on 1 
December 2017.  

In 2012, a factoring agreement was signed with Nordea Finance Lithuania UAB for the maximum amount of LTL 10,013 
thousand. The agreement expires on 27 March 2013. As of 31 December 2012, the factoring balance from the bank 
amounted to LTL 3,155 thousand.  
 
As of 31 December 2012, the Group’s undrawn balances of loans and overdrafts under the above-listed agreements 
amounted to LTL 112,539 thousand (31 December 2011: LTL 107,424 thousand). As of 31 December 2012, the Company’s 
undrawn balances of loans and overdrafts amounted to LTL 102,572 thousand (31 December 2011: LTL 98,593 thousand). 
 
The Company has assumed the following obligations under the loan agreements: 
 
The Company has assumed an obligation to DnB NORD AB to pledge all current and future cash inflows into the accounts 
opened at this bank (Note 12). The Company has also pledged fuel reserves held under the right of ownership and stored at 
Elektrinės St. 21, in Elektrėnai, for the market value not lower than LTL 6,000 thousand (Note 9), and assets pledged 

should be insured by the insurer agreed with the bank and indicating the bank as a beneficiary. 
 

The Company has assumed an obligation to Swedbank AB, SEB Bankas AB, Nordea Bank Finland Plc, Lithuania Branch, DnB 
NORD Bankas AB to pledge to the banks appropriate non-current assets with the carrying amount not lower than LTL 340 
million (Note 5), all cash balances in all bank accounts held at banks registered in Lithuania (Note 12); it is also committed 

to carry out its operations only through the accounts held at these banks.  
 

The Company has assumed an obligation to Swedbank AB, SEB Bankas AB, Nordea Bank Finland Plc, Lithuania branch, DnB 
NORD Bankas AB and Danske Bank A/S, Lithuania branch to pledge the entire Project, i.e. immovable, tangible and 
intangible assets constituting 400 MW combined-cycle gas turbine block or developed in the course of the Project, all 
current and future cash inflows into all current and future accounts opened at these banks, and all property rights arising 

from property insurance contracts associated with the Project. Currently, the procedures of pledging the combined-cycle gas 
turbine block are in process, and they are expected to be finalised by 3 June 2013.   
 
Under the loan agreements, the Company is also required to comply with certain financial and non-financial covenants.  
 
As of 31 December 2011, Lietuvos Energija AB did not comply with the covenant stipulated in the Syndicated Loan 
Agreement No. 10-021291-IN signed on 31 March 2010 with Swedbank AB, SEB Bankas AB, Nordea Bank Finland Plc 
Lithuania branch, DNB Bankas AB and Danske Bank A/S Lithuania branch (hereinafter collectively “the Banks”). The 
requirement to maintain debt to EBITDA ratio not higher than 7 was breached. This ratio was exceeded by 1.6. In addition, 
the Company has a commitment not to make investments in other companies (including, but not limited to, investments in 
equity shares, bonds or other securities of companies), and not to establish new companies (separately or jointly with other 
partners) without obtaining a written consent from the majority of the Banks. On 23 December 2011, the Company signed 
an agreement for the subscription of shares of Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB. The Company did not refer to the 
Banks to obtain their consent for this transaction, which was in breach of the aforementioned covenant. On 8 March 2012, 
the Company received an official letter from the Banks confirming that in 2012 the Banks will not exercise their contractual 
right to require an early repayment of the loan in full or in part. However, based on the provisions of the Agreement, the 
Banks do have a right to require an early repayment of the loan in full or in part. In view of these provisions, the 
outstanding balance of the loan amounting to LTL 281,058 thousand as of 31 December 2011 was reclassified in the 
Company’s financial statements as current borrowings. On 31 January 2012, the Company signed an agreement for the 
acquisition of newly issued shares of NT Valdos UAB. In 2012, the Company referred to the Banks for their consent for 
these transactions. On 28 December 2012 it received an official letter from the Banks confirming that they will not exercise  
19 Borrowings (continued) 
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their contractual right, which the Banks are entitled to in the event the borrower breaches paragraph 11.2.7 of the loan 
agreement (i.e. the right to require payment of fine, the right to require an early repayment in full or in part of the 
outstanding balance of loan by the borrower to the Banks). In view of this official letter, outstanding balance of the loan 
amounting to LTL 259,438 thousand as of 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011: LTL 281,058 thousand) was reclassified 
in the Company’s financial statements as non-current borrowings. 
 
In view of the provisions of the loan agreement signed on 30 June 2004 with Swedbank AB, SEB Bankas UAB, Nordea Bank 
Finland Plc branch, DnB NORD Bankas AB (hereinafter collectively “the Banks“), as of 31 December 2011 the Company also 
did not comply with its above-mentioned obligation not to make investments in other companies without obtaining a written 
consent from the majority of the Banks. On 8 March 2012, the Company received an official letter from the Banks 
confirming that in 2012 the Banks will not exercise their contractual right to require an early repayment of the loan in full or 
in part. However, the outstanding balance of the loan amounting to LTL 89,635 thousand as of 31 December 2011 was 
reclassified in the Company’s financial statements as current borrowings. On 31 January 2012, the Company signed an 
agreement for the acquisition of newly issued shares of NT Valdos UAB. In 2012, the Company referred to the Banks for 
their consent for these transactions. On 28 December 2012 it received an official letter from the Banks confirming that they 
will not exercise their contractual right, which the Banks are entitled to in the event the borrower breaches paragraph 
11.2.7 of the loan agreement (i.e. the right to require payment of fine, the right to require an early repayment in full or in 
part of the outstanding balance of loan by the borrower to the Banks). In view of this official letter, the outstanding balance 
of the loan amounting to LTL 59,940 thousand as of 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011: LTL 89,635 thousand) was 
reclassified in the Company’s financial statements as non-current liabilities. 
 
As of 31 December 2012, the fair value of the Group’s borrowings was equal to approx. LTL 715,786 thousand (31 
December 2011: LTL 689,034 thousand). As of 31 December 2012, the fair value of Company’s borrowings was equal to 
approx. LTL 697,685 thousand (31 December 2011: LTL 687,965 thousand). 
 
The table below presents data on the Group’s borrowings by interest rate repricing intervals:  
 

  
Group 

 
Company 

 
Group 

 
Company 

  

At 31 
December 

 At 31 
December 

 At 31 
December 

 At 31 
December 

  

2012 
 

2012 
 

2011 
 

2011 

1 to 3 months 
 

76,522 
 

58,333 
 

300,615 
 

299,446 

3 to 6 months 
 

602,257 

 
602,257 

 
340,355 

 
340,355 

Total borrowings 
 

678,779 
 

660,590 
 

640,970 
 

639,801 

 
As of 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Company and the Group had no other committed undrawn credit 
facilities. 
 
20 Finance lease liabilities 
 
The Group’s future minimum finance lease payments for equipment and other assets comprise as follows: 

 
 At 31 December 2012  At 31 December 2011  

Group 
Minimum finance 
lease payments 

 Present value of 
minimum 

finance lease 
payments 

 

Minimum finance 
lease payments 

 Present value 
of minimum 
finance lease 

payments 

Finance lease payments:        

No later than 1 year 331  327  596  584 
Later than 1 year an no later than 5 
years  47  44  322  319 

Minimum finance lease payments 378  371  918  903 
Less: future finance charges (7)  -  (15)  -  

Present value of minimum finance 
lease payments 371  371  903  903 

 
The Group’s finance lease liabilities are secured by the lessor’s right into the lessee’s assets acquired under finance lease 
(Note 5). 
 
The Company did not have any finance lease liabilities as of 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011.  

 
The fair value of the finance lease liabilities approximates their carrying amount.  
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21 Grants 
 
 The balance of grants includes grants received to finance the acquisition of assets. Movement of grants in 2012 and 2011 
was as follows: 
 

  
Assets-related grants 

    

Group/Company 

 

Fuel 
combustion 
equipment 
and other 

assets  
 

Project for 
renovation, 

improvement 
of 

environmental 
and safety 
standards 

 

Grants for 
emission 

allowances 

 
Total 

         
Balance at 1 January 2011 

 
26,795 

 
846,162 

 
- 

 
872,957 

Depreciation of immovable property, 
plant and equipment 

 
(2,109) 

 
(9,626) 

 
- 

 
(11,735) 

Grants received 
 

69,167 
 

78,180 
 

26,701 

 
174,048 

Utilisation of grant for emission 
allowances 

 
 - 

 
-  

 
(26,701) 

 
(26,701) 

Balance at 31 December 2011 
 

93,853 
 

914,716 
 

- 
 

1,008,569 

         
Balance at 1 January 2012 

 
93,853 

 
914,716 

 
- 

 
1,008,569 

Depreciation of immovable property, 
plant and equipment 

 
(2,089) 

 
(16,471) 

 
- 

 
(18,560) 

Grants received 
 

- 
 

110,487 
 

16,211 

 
126,698 

Grants repaid  (35)  -  -  (35) 
Utilisation of grant for emission 
allowances 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(16,211) 

 
(16,211) 

Balance at 31 December 2012 
 

91,729 
 

1,008,732 
 

- 
 

1,100,461 

 
In 2012, assets-related grants decreased by LTL 18,560 thousand, i.e. by the amount of depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment (2011: LTL 11,735 thousand). Depreciation expenses of property, plant and equipment were reduced by this 
amount in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 
In 2012, the Company received a grant of LTL 37,420 thousand from the International Fund for Support of 
Decommissioning of Ignalina Nuclear Power Plant for the construction of a new 400 MW combined-cycle gas turbine block 
(2011: LTL 79,447 thousand).  
 
In 2012, the Company received PSO service fees amounting to LTL 73,067 thousand for the construction of Unit No.9 of the 
Reserve Power Plant (2011: LTL 67,900 thousand). 
 
22 Other non-current accounts payable and liabilities 
 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2011 

        

Advance amounts of PSO service fees received  26,208  26,208  39,313  39,313 

Non-current payables for material valuables  4,056  4,056  4,368  4,368 

Provisions for pension benefits and 
indemnification for damages 2,114  1,880  1,984  1,710 

Deferred revenue  1,609  -  -  - 

Liability related to guarantees for Nordic 
Energy Link 259  259  472  472 

   Other 151  -  -  - 

Total 34,397  32,403  46,137  45,863 

 
Provisions for pension benefits represent payable amounts calculated in accordance with the Lithuanian laws. Each 
employee at retirement age is entitled to receive a payment of 2 monthly salaries upon retirement. 
 
Current portion of advance amounts of PSO service fees received is included in advance amounts received (Note 25). 
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23 Income tax 
 
Income tax expense as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 comprised as follows: 
 

 Group  
2012 

 Company 
2012 

 Group  
2011 

 Company 
2011  

Income tax expense components:        

 
 Current income tax   7,395  5,935  14,215  12,512 

        Adjustment of previous year income tax (1,329)  (1,329)  (8,621)  (8,621) 

Deferred income tax (income)/expense 3,107  4,504  (4,845)  (3,056) 

        

Income tax expense for the reporting period 9,173  9,110  749  835 

 *Adjustment of previous year income tax is related to the investment relief applied to taxable profit for 2012 and 2011. 
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23 Income tax (continued) 
 
Movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the reporting period are as follows: 
 

Group PP&E 
revaluation  

(impair-
ment) 

 
Bad debts 

 

Accrued 
charges 

 

Impair-
ment of 
assets  

 
Total 

Deferred income tax assets 

         At 31 December 2010 165,032 

 
1,850 

 
7,545 

 
491 

 
174,918 

Recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income (6,472) 

 
133 

 
716 

 
(644) 

 
(6,267) 

Acquisition of subsidiary - 
 

- 
 

214 
 

- 
 

214 
Recognised in the statement of 
changes in equity - 

 
- 

 
- 

 
351 

 
351 

At 31 December 2011 158,560 

 
1,983 

 
8,475 

 
198 

 
169,216 

          At 31 December 2011 158,560 

 
1,983 

 
8,475 

 
198 

 
169,216 

Recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income (6,997) 

 
(21) 

 
(5,861) 

 
(42) 

 
(12,921) 

At 31 December 2012 151,563 

 
1,962 

 
2,614 

 
156 

 
156,295 

 

Group 
PP&E 

revaluation  
(impair-
ment) 

 

Differen-
ces in 

deprecia-
tion rates 

 

Tax relief 
on 

acquisi-
tion of 
PP&E 

 
Other  

 
Total 

Deferred income tax liabilities 
         

At 31 December 2010 (290,618)   (3,081)   (9,596)   (107) 

 
(303,402) 

Recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income 11,573 

 
1,376 

 
(1,870) 

 
33 

 
11,112 

Acquisition of subsidiary (1,287) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(1,287) 

Recognised in other 
comprehensive income (989) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(989) 

At 31 December 2011 (281,321) 

 
(1,705) 

 
(11,466) 

 
(74) 

 
(294,566) 

          

At 31 December 2011 (281,321) 

 
(1,705) 

 
(11,466) 

 
(74) 

 
(294,566) 

Recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income 11,343 

 
(2,009) 

 
448 

 
32 

 
9,814 

Recognised in other 
comprehensive income 93 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
93 

At 31 December 2012 (269,885) 

 
(3,714) 

 
(11,018) 

 
(42) 

 
(284,659) 

          Net deferred income tax at 31 December 2010       (128,484) 

Net deferred income tax at 31 December 2011       (125,350) 

Net deferred income tax at 31 December 2012       (128,361) 
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23 Income tax (continued) 
 

Company PP&E 
revaluation  

(impair-
ment) 

 
Bad debts 

 

Accrued 
charges 

 

Impair-
ment of 
assets  

 
Total 

Deferred income tax assets 

         At 31 December 2010 164,181   1,443   6,895   2,523 
 

175,042 

Recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income (5,914) 

 
- 

 
586 

 
(2,327) 

 
(7,655) 

At 31 December 2011 158,267 

 
1,443 

 
7,481 

 
196 

 
167,387 

          At 31 December 2011 158,267 

 
1,443 

 

7,481 

 

196 

 

167,387 

Recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income (6,997) 

 
- 

 
(6,674) 

 
(42) 

 
(13,713) 

At 31 December 2012 151,270 

 
1,443 

 
807 

 
154 

 
153,674 

 

Company 
PP&E 

revaluation  
(impair-
ment) 

 

Differen-
ces in 

deprecia-
tion rates 

 

Tax relief 
on 

acquisi-
tion of 
PP&E 

 
Other  

 
Total 

Deferred income tax liabilities 
         

At 31 December 2010 (289,269)   (3,152)   (9,486)   (104) 

 
(302,011) 

Recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income 10,982 

 
1,566 

 
(1,870) 

 
33 

 
10,711 

Recognised in other 
comprehensive income (398) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(398) 

At 31 December 2011 (278,685) 

 
(1,586) 

 
(11,356) 

 
(71) 

 
(291,698) 

          
At 31 December 2011 (278,685) 

 
(1,586) 

 
(11,356) 

 
(71) 

 
(291,698) 

Recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income 10,738 

 
(2,009) 

 
448 

 
32 

 
9,209 

Recognised in other 
comprehensive income - 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

At 31 December 2012 (267,947) 

 
(3,595) 

 
(10,908) 

 
(39) 

 
(282,489) 

          Net deferred income tax at 31 
December 2010                 (126,969) 
Net deferred income tax at 31 
December 2011                 (124,311) 
Net deferred income tax at 31 
December 2012                 (128,815) 
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23 Income tax (continued) 
 
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities were offset in the Company‘s statement of financial position 
as they relate to the same fiscal authority. The Group’s deferred income tax assets related to operations of subsidiaries 
were not offset against the Company’s deferred income tax liabilities and were presented separately as non-current assets 
in the statement of financial position. 
 
Deferred income tax recognised in the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 comprised as 
follows: 
 

 
Group 

 
Company 

 
Group 

 
Company 

 
As at As at As at As at 

 

31 
December 

2012 

31 
December 

2012 

31 
December 

2011 

31 
December 

2011 

        
Deferred income tax assets 622 

 
- 

 
81 

 
- 

Deferred income tax liabilities 128,983 
 

128,815 
 

125,431 
 

124,311 

Deferred income tax liability, net  128,361 
 

128,815 
 

125,350 
 

124,311 
 
When calculating deferred income tax as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, income tax rate of 15 per cent was 
applied on those components which will be realised in 2013 and later periods. 
 
The Company’s and the Group’s deferred income tax to be realised within 12 months amounts to LTL 4,700 thousand (31 
December 2011: LTL 1,967 thousand). 
 
As of 31 December 2012, the Group had LTL 7,077 thousand (31 December 2011: LTL 9,925 thousand) of accumulated 
unrealised tax losses on which no deferred tax asset was recognised. These tax losses are carried forward for indefinite 
period.  
 
Income tax expense reported in the statement of comprehensive income relating to the result of operations during the 
current reporting period may be reconciled to income tax expense that would arise using the statutory income tax rate 
applicable to profit before income tax. 
 
 

 Group  
2012 

 Company 
2012 

 Group  
2011 

 Company 
2011  

        

Profit before income tax 46,820  42,573  2,275  11,591 

        

Income tax at a tax rate of 15% (2011: 15%) 7,023  6,386  341  1,739 

Adjustment of previous year income tax (1,329)  (1,329)  (8,621)  (8,621) 

Tax effects of non-taxable income and non-
deductible expenses 3,388  4,053  7,708  7,717 

Unrecognised deferred income tax on tax losses 91  -  1,321  - 

Income tax 9,173  9,110  749  835 
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24 Trade payables 
 
Trade payables of the Group and the Company are as follows:  
 

 
Group 

at 31 December 
2012 

 
Company 

at 31 December 
2012 

 
Group 

at 31 December 
2011  

 Company 
at 31 

December 
2011  

        

Amounts due for contractual works, other 
services 101,634  95,965  28,175  15,094 

Payables for electricity and related services 30,233  25,474  35,964  35,974 

Payables for gas and heavy fuel oil 4,342  4,342  21,763  21,763 

Accrued liabilities for electricity 1,834  1,834  251  251 

Payables for material valuables 515  515  30,677  30,677 

Total 138,558  128,130  116,830  103,759 

 
The fair values of trade payables approximate their carrying amounts. 
 
 
25 Advance amounts received 
 
The Group‘s and the Company‘s advance amounts received comprise as follows:  
 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011  

 Company 
at 31 December 

2011  

        

Advance amounts of PSO service fees received 
(Note 22) 13,104  13,104  13,104  13,104 

Other advance amounts received 2,283  1,931  1,928  1,781 

Deferred income on contract works in progress 608  -  2,596  - 

Total 15,995  15,035  17,628  14,885 

 
 
26 Provisions for emission allowances 
 
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, provisions for emission allowances comprised as follows: 
 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011  

 Company 
at 31 December 

2011  

        

Provision for onerous contract -  -  -  - 

Total -  -  -  - 
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26 Provisions for emission allowances (continued) 
 
Movement on current portion of provisions for emission allowances as at 31 December 2012 and 2011: 
 

 Group 
 

 Company 
 

 

     

Balance at 31 December 2010 67,282  67,282  

Emission allowances utilised (Note 4)  (54,212)  (54,212)  

Provisions for emissions  16,268  16,268  

Current portion of provisions for onerous 
contract  32,593  32,593  

Balance at 31 December 2011 61,931  61,931  

     

Balance at 31 December 2011 61,931  61,931  

Emission allowances utilised (Note 4)  (16,268)  (16,268)  

Provisions for emissions  13,915  13,915  

Provisions for onerous contract 12,824  12,824  

Reversal of provisions for onerous contract (58,487)  (58,487)  

Balance at 31 December 2012 13,915  13,915  
 
* For the purpose of the statement of comprehensive income, expenses of provision for emission allowances utilised are 
reported net of government grants (Note 21). 
 
 

27 Other accounts payable and liabilities 
 
The Group‘s and the Company‘s other accounts payable comprise as follows:  
 

 
Group 

at 31 December 
2012 

 Company 
at 31 

December 
2012 

 
Group 
at 31 

December 2011  

 
Company 

at 31 December 
2011  

        

Accrued expenses from purchases of electricity 17,089  17,089  12,397  12,020 

Derivative financial instrument 5,752  5,752  1,638  1,638 

VAT payable 5,199  4,771  871  - 

Employment-related liabilities 4,441  2,319  4,882  2,047 

Vacation reserve 4,013  2,135  2,317  1,567 

Taxes payable  3,327  3,064  2,183  1,886 

Dividends payable 2,261  2,261  2,269  2,269 

Other payables and current liabilities 2,203  1,441  1,401  1,340 

 
Carrying amount 44,285  38,832  27,958  22,767 

 
The fair values of other accounts payable approximate their carrying amounts. 
 
Derivative financial instrument arrised from the agreement, which was concluded between Gazprom Marketing and Trading 
and the Company on 20 October 2010 regarding the Swap of EUA to CER. The fair value of the derivative financial 
instrument was estimated with respect to the market values of EUA and CER as at 31 December 2012. 
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28 Sales revenue 
 
The Group’s and the Company’s sales revenue consists of revenue from sale of electricity and related services. Sales 
revenue for the periods ended 31 December is presented below: 
 

 
Group  
2012 

 Company 
2012 

 Group  
2011 

 Company 
2011  

        

Sale of electricity in domestic market 1,162,530  987,578  1,230,003  1,221,421 

Export of electricity 93,027  93,027  64,332  64,332 

Capacity reserve 72,713  72,713  64,685  64,685 

Revenue from sale of thermal energy 19,364  19,378  15,135  15,135 

Total 1,347,634  1,172,696  1,374,155  1,365,573 

 
 

29 Segment information 
 
In 2012, the management distinguished operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Board. The Board is the 
principal decision-making body on the Group level. With effect from 2012, the Board started analysing the operations in 

terms of profitability of the regulated activities and the commercial activities of the Company. Operating profit (loss) is a 
profitability measure analysed by the Board. The reports analysed by the Board are in line with the financial statements 
prepared in accordance with IFRSs, except for the format of presentation. Changes were made in segment information in 
view of how the Board analysed the Group’s operations.   
 
As of 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Group’s management analysed the Group’s operations by separating 
them into regulated activities and commercial activities. The regulated activities include the Reserve Power Plant’s revenue 
from heat and electricity production, balancing and regulation, capacity reserve, including capacity reserve revenue of 
Kruonis Pumped Storage Power Plant. The commercial activities include electricity trade in a free market, export/import, 
electricity production at Kaunas Hydro Power Plant and Kruonis Pumped Storage Power Plant, and the related balancing and 
regulation services. Administrative expenses are allocated between the regulated activities and the commercial activities 
based on operating expenses, headcount and sales. The operations of Energijos Tiekimas UAB representing electricity 
supply constitute a separate segment. Other activities within the Group included repair services of energy facilities and IT 
services.  
 
Inter-company transactions within the Group are conducted at market prices, except for trade in electricity and related 
services, the prices of which are established by the National Control Commission for Prices and Energy. 
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29  Segment information (continued) 
 
The Group’s segments information for the year ended 31 December 2012 is presented in the table below: 

2012  

Electricity production and trade (including 
export/import) 

Other 
activities 

 
 

Total 
Lietuvos Energija AB 

Energijos 
Tiekimas 

UAB Regulated 
activities 

Commercial 
activities 

      Total revenue of segments 596,657 579,934 328,920 106,391 1,611,902 

Inter-segment revenue   (153,982) (14,106) (168,088) 

Revenue from external customers  596,657 579,934 174,938 92,285 1,443,814 
Expenses after elimination of inter-
company transactions within the 
Group  (597,749) (527,590) (174,826) (87,994) (1,388,159) 

Whereof: depreciation and amortisation 
expenses (47,317) (17,563) - (14,048) (78,928) 

Operating profit (1,092) 52,344 112 4,291 55,655 

Finance income after elimination of 
inter-company transactions within 
the Group 835 626 582 193 2,236 
Finance (costs) after elimination of 
inter-company transactions within 
the Group (12,517) (937) (96) (207) (13,757) 

Share of results of operations of 
associates and joint ventures     2,686 2,686 

Profit before income tax (12,774) 52,033 598 6,963 46,820 

Income tax     (9,173) 

Net profit      37,647 
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29  Segment information (continued) 
 
The Group‘s segment information for the year ended 31 December 2011 is presented in the table below:  

2011  

Electricity production and trade (including 
export/import) 

Other 
activities 

 
 

Total 
Lietuvos Energija AB 

Energijos 
Tiekimas 

UAB Regulated 
activities 

Commercial 
activities 

      Total revenue of segments 541,035 848,018 211,397 62,155 1,662,605 

Inter-segment revenue   (202,838) (30,260) (233,098) 

Revenue from external customers 541,035 848,018 8,559 31,895 1,429,507 
Expenses after elimination of inter-
company transactions within the 
Group (633,086) (740,821) (2,827) (39,612) (1,416,346) 

Whereof: depreciation and amortisation 
expenses (40,061) (17,700) - (2,752) (60,513) 

Operating profit (92,051) 107,197 5,732 (7,717) 13,161 

Finance income after elimination of 
inter-company transactions within 
the Group  1,249 95 18 1,362 
Finance (costs) after elimination of 
inter-company transactions within 
the Group (5,660) (254) (76) (210) (6,200) 

Share of results of operations of 
associates and joint ventures     (6,048) (6,048) 

Profit before income tax (97,711) 108,192 5,751 (13,957) 2,275 

Income tax     (749) 

Net profit      1,526 

 
The Company/Group exports electricity to the EU Member States and Russia. Also, the Group exported metal constructions 
and repair services. 
 
As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Group’s and the Company’s revenue by country was as follows: 
 

Country 

Group 
2012 

 

 Company 
2012  

 

 Group 
2011 

 

 Company 
2011 

 

        

Lithuania 1,287,403  1,021,980  1,352,864  1,324,721 

Estonia 10,429  10,015  37,124  31,120 

Latvia 53,606  53,579  35,676  33,212 

Norway 90,585  90,585  227  - 

Other 1,791  432  3,616  - 

Total 1,443,814  1,176,591  1,429,507  1,389,053 

 
All assets of the Group and the Company are located in Lithuania. 
  



LIETUVOS ENERGIJA, AB 
Company code 302648707, Elektrinės g. 21, LT-26108 Elektrėnai 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 
All amounts in LTL thousands unless otherwise stated 

 
 

117 
 

29 Segment information (continued) 
 
Group revenues from customers which represent 10% of more of the total revenues are as follows: 
 

2012  

Electricity production and trade (including 
export/import) 

Other 
activities 

 
 

Total 
Lietuvos Energija AB 

Energijos 
Tiekimas 

UAB Regulated 
activities 

Commercial 
activities 

Litgrid, AB 381,614 - - 27,744 409,358 

Lesto, AB 512,197 - - 27,406 539,603 

Total  893,811 - - 55,150 948,961 

 

2011  

Electricity production and trade (including 
export/import) 

Other 
activities 

 
 

Total 
Lietuvos Energija AB 

Energijos 
Tiekimas 

UAB Regulated 

activities 

Commercial 

activities 

Litgrid, AB 305,320 - - 34,676 339,996 

Lesto, AB 594,748 - - 25,086 619,834 

Total  900,068 - - 59,762 959,830 

 
 
30    Other operating income 
 

As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Group’s and the Company’s other operating income comprised as 
follows: 
 
 

 Group 
2012 

 

 Company 
2012  

 

 Group 
2011 

 

 Company 
2011 

 

        

Repairs, data transmission and other services 86,638  -  53,726  - 

Other income 9,542  3,895  1,348  1,635 

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment -  -  278  278 

Gain on disposal of investments -  -  -  21,567 

Total 96,180  3,895  55,352  23,480 

 

On 23 December 2011, the Company and Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB signed an Agreement for the Subscription 
of Shares, based on which Lietuvos Energija AB subscribed for 32,163,004 newly issued ordinary registered shares of 
Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB with par value of LTL 1 each. The total issue price was equal to LTL 34,414 thousand 
and it was paid by in-kind contribution of 12,847,295 ordinary registered intangible shares of Data Logistics Center UAB 
with par value of LTL 1 each, which made up 100% of the latter company‘s authorised share capital, with the carrying 
amount of LTL 12,847 thousand as at 31 December 2011. The difference between the selling price and carrying amount of 
Data Logistics Center UAB was recognised as gain on disposal of investments.  
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30    Other operating income (continued) 
 
Income from repair services represents income received by subsidiary Kauno Energetikos Remontas UAB under the 
contracts concluded (the Company had no income under the contracts). Information about contract works in progress as at 
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 is presented in the table below: 
 
 

 

At 31 
December 

2012 

 At 31 
December  

2011 

    

Expenses recognised on contract works in progress  34,903  25,070 

Profit recognised (less loss) on contract works in progress  5,751  3,836 

Total income recognised on contract works in progress  40,654  28,906 

    

Accumulated loss arising on the completion of contract works in progress  -  - 

    

Total amount billed on contract works in progress  41,122  30,698 

Accrued income on contract works in progress  136  750 

Deferred income on contract works in progress  603  2,542 
 
 

31 Finance income 
 
As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Group’s and the Company’s finance income comprised as follows: 
 

 Group 
2012 

 

 Company 
2012  

 

 Group 
2011 

 

 Company 
2011 

 

        

Interest income 550  724  996  988 

Other income 1,408  775  352  595 

Foreign exchange positive effect 278  277  14  1 

Dividends -  3,000  -  774 

Total finance income 2,236  4,776  1,362  2,358 

 
 
32 Finance costs 
 
As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Group’s and the Company’s finance costs comprised as follows: 
 

 Group 
2012 

 

 Company 
2012  

 

 Group 
2011 

 

 Company 
2011 

 

        

Interest expense * (9,148)  (8,971)  (3,223)  (3,078) 

Expenses of derivative financial instruments  (4,114)  (4,114)  (2,492)  (2,492) 

Foreign exchange negative effect and other expenses (197)  (188)  (353)  (343) 

Other finance costs (298)  (181)  (132)  - 

 
Total finance costs (13,757)  (13,454)  (6,200)  (5,913) 

 
* In addition to interest expense recognised as finance costs as disclosed in Note 5, the Group’s interest expenses 
capitalised as part of property, plant and equipment amounted to LTL 22,710 thousand (2011: LTL 30,764 thousand). 
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33 Related-party transactions 
 
Purchase and sale of goods and services: 
 
The Group’s transactions with related parties during 2012 and the balances arising on these transactions as at 31 December 
2012 are presented below:  
 

Related parties Payables and 
accrued 

expenses  

Receivables 
and unbilled 

revenue  Purchases  Sales 

        
Entities controlled by the Ministry of Economy of 
the Republic of Lithuania (including subsidiaries of 
Visagino Atominė Elektrinė UAB) 

27  43,270  2,198  541,996 

Litgrid AB group 7,428  33,709  351,032  627,411 
Visagino Atominė Elektrinė UAB -  68  -  563 
Associates of the Group 1,342  313  12,820  2,476 

 
Total 8,797  77,360  366,050  1,172,446 

 
*BALTPOOL UAB does not recognise electricity purchases and sales as income and expense. During 2012, the Group’s sales 
of electricity to BALTPOOL UAB amounted to LTL 81,270 thousand and purchases of electricity amounted to LTL 243,688 
thousand. 
 
The Company’s transactions with related parties conducted during 2012 and the balances arising on these transactions as at 
31 December 2012 are presented below: 
 

Related parties 
Payables and 

accrued 
expenses  

Receivables 
and unbilled 

revenue  Purchases  

Sales 
(including 
dividends 
received) 

        
Subsidiaries of the Company 3,426  20,551  13,687  156,925 
Entities controlled by the Ministry of Economy of 
the Republic of Lithuania (including subsidiaries of 
Visagino Atominė Elektrinė UAB) 

 
 

8 

  
 

39,971 

  
 

234 

  
 

512,197 
Litgrid AB group 6,541  25,305  257,873  598,596 
Visagino Atominė Elektrinė UAB -  -  -  - 

Associates of the Company 62  -  8,365  7 

 
Total 10,037  85,827  280,159  1,267,725 

 
* BALTPOOL UAB does not recognise electricity purchases and sales as income and expense. During 2012, the Company’s 
sales of electricity to BALTPOOL UAB amounted to LTL 81,270 thousand and purchases of electricity amounted to LTL 
157,051 thousand. 
 
The Group’s transactions with related parties during 2011 and the balances arising on these transactions as at 31 December 
2011 are presented below: 
 

Related parties Payables and 
accrued 

expenses  

Receivables 
and unbilled 

revenue  Purchases  Sales 

        
Entities controlled by the Ministry of Economy of 
the Republic of Lithuania   (including subsidiaries of 
Visagino Atominė Elektrinė UAB) 

630  45,471  2,233  563,202 

Litgrid AB group 10,990  43,419  536,525*  626,505* 
Visagino Atominė Elektrinė UAB 70  -  -  393 
Associates of the Group 1,216  326  2,268  1,892 

 
Total 12,906  89,216  541,026  1,191,992 

**BALTPOOL UAB does not recognise electricity purchases and sales as income and expense. During 2011, the Group’s 
sales of electricity to BALTPOOL UAB amounted to LTL 217,695 thousand and purchases of electricity amounted to LTL 
489,180 thousand. 
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34 Related-party transactions (continued) 
 
The Company’s transactions with related parties conducted during 2011 and the balances arising on these transactions as at 
31 December 2011 are presented below: 
 

Related parties Payables and 
accrued 

expenses  

Receivables 
and unbilled 

revenue  Purchases  Sales 

        
Subsidiaries of the Company 6,830  24,633  8,037  202,980 
Entities controlled by the Ministry of Economy of 
the Republic of Lithuania (including subsidiaries of 
Visagino Atominė Elektrinė UAB) 

10  43,798  139  594,751 

Litgrid AB group 10,118  37,658  531,073*  590,913* 
Visagino Atominė Elektrinė UAB -  -  -  - 
Associates of the Company 226  -  2,175  494 

 
Total 17,184  106,089  541,424  1,389,138 

* BALTPOOL UAB does not recognise electricity purchases and sales as income and expense. During 2011, the Company’s 
sales of electricity to BALTPOOL UAB amounted to LTL 217,695 thousand and purchases of electricity amounted to LTL 
489,180 thousand. 
 
The major sale and purchase transactions with related parties within the Group in 2012 and 2011 comprised transactions 
with the entities controlled by the Ministry of Economy of the Republic of Lithuania: Lesto AB, Litgrid AB. The Group’s 
purchases from these entities mainly included purchases of electricity, capacity, and PSO services. Sales transactions mainly 
included sales of electricity, capacity, electricity transmission services and PSO services. 
 
Transactions with state-owned entities other than those controlled by the Ministry of Energy included regular business 
transactions and therefore they are not disclosed.   
 
The Company sold capacity to its associate Nordic Energy Link AS, paid capacity, operation, transmission and balancing fees 
to this company, and purchased capacity from it.  
 
There were no guarantees or pledges given or received in respect of the related-party payables and receivables, except for 
guarantees to the associate and the subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 36.  Related-party payables and receivables are 
expected to be settled in cash or offset against payables/receivables to/from a respective related party. 
 
Compensation to key management personnel 
 

 Group 
2012 

 Company 
2012 

 Group 
2011  

 Company 
2011  

        

Employment-related payments *  4,133  1,533  4,350  1,701 

Termination benefits 114  -  143  31 

Other significant payments to key management 
personnel 

-  
- 

 -  
- 

Number of key management personnel *  27  10  31  11 
*Employment-related payments of Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centras UAB and Respublikinis Energetikų Mokymo Centras VŠĮ 
presented in 2011 and number of key management personnel at the end of the reporting period. 
 
Key management personnel in the table above are heads of administration and their deputies, and the chief financial officer. 
 
 
35 Basic and diluted earnings per share (in LTL) 
 
In 2012 and 2011, basic and diluted earnings per share were as follows: 
 

  
2012  

  
2011  

 

     
Net profit for the year attributable to the owners   36,100  1,526 
Weighted average number of shares (units)  635,083,615  635,083,615 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in LTL)  0.06  0.00 
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36 Financial risk management 
 
In performing their activities, the Group companies are exposed to financial risks, i.e. credit risk, liquidity risk and market 
risk (foreign exchange risk, fair value interest rate risk and cash flows interest rate risk, and securities price risk). In 
managing these risks, the Group companies seek to mitigate the effect of factors which could have an adverse impact on 
the financial performance of the Group and the Company. 
 
Financial instruments by category 
 

Financial assets Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2011 

        

Trade receivables  288,855  253,916  233,479  207,498 

Other receivables 11,102  10,858  3,282  9,016 

Cash and cash equivalents  34,345  8,157  27,907  8,281 

Other non-current accounts receivable  10,927  10,927  1,426  1,426 

Loans and receivables 345,229  283,858  266,094  226,221 

Other financial assets 20  -  267  - 

Financial assets at fair value through 
profit and loss 

20  - 
  267   - 

Total 345,249  283,858  266,361  226,221 

 

Financial liabilities Group 
at 31 

December 
2012 

 
Company 

at 31 December 
2012 

 
Group 

at 31 December 
2011 

 
Company 

at 31 December 
2011 

        

Borrowings  678,779  660,590  642,166  640,997 

Finance lease liabilities   371  -  903  - 

Other non-current payables  4,466  4,315  4,840  4,840 

Trade payables  138,558  128,130  116,830  103,759 

Other accounts payable and liabilities  21,553   20,791  16,067  15,629 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost 

843,727  813,826  
780,806 

 
765,225 

Other financial liabilities -  -  -  - 

Derivative financial instruments at fair 
value through profit and loss  

5,752  5,752   
1,638 

  
1,638 

Total 849,479  819,578  782,444  766,863 
 
Credit risk 
 
As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, items exposed to credit risk were as follows: 
 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2012 

 Group 
at 31 December 

2011 

 Company 
at 31 December 

2011 

        

Financial assets 345,249  283,858  266,361  226,221 

Guarantees 259  259  472  472 

Total 345,508  284,117  266,833  226,693 
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of each financial asset and the total amount of 
guarantees issued to the associate and the subsidiaries (Note 37).  
 
The credit risk of the Group and the Company related to the accounts receivable is limited because the major buyers are 
reliable customers. As of 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, trade receivables neither past due nor impaired were 
of high credit quality as the majority of these receivables were due from operators of the distribution network and large 

industrial companies. The Group and the Company are exposed to significant credit risk concentration, because credit risks 
are shared among 7 main customers, which account for approximately 85 per cent of total trade receivables of the Group 
and the Company.  
  
The credit risk relating to cash in banks is limited because the Group and the Company conduct transactions with the banks 
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.  
 
The Group and the Company hold cash balances and term deposits in accounts of the major banks in Lithuania assigned 
with ‘A-‘ and higher external credit rating by the rating agency Fitch Ratings. 
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36  Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Liquidity risk 
 
The liquidity risk is managed by planning the cash flows of the Group. In order to manage the liquidity risk, cash flow 
forecasts are prepared. Overdraft and credit line agreements are used to manage the difference between the risks of late 
collection of receivables and the short-term cash flows (inflows and outflows). Undrawn balances of loans are disclosed in 
Note 19. 
 
The Group’s current liquidity (total current assets / total current liabilities) and quick liquidity ((total current assets – 
inventories) / total current liabilities) ratios as of 31 December 2012 were 1.23 and 1.04, respectively (31 December 2011: 
0.65 and 0.45, respectively). The Company’s current liquidity (total current assets / total current liabilities) and quick 
liquidity ((total current assets – inventories) / total current liabilities) ratios as of 31 December 2012 were 1.13 and 0.93, 
respectively (31 December 2011: 0.6 and 0.39, respectively). 
 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company‘s non-derivative financial liabilities based 
on contractual undiscounted payments. This table has been prepared based on undiscounted cash flows of financial 
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group and the Company can be required to cover the liabilities. Balances 
with repayment terms up to 12 months approximate their carrying amounts, because the impact of discounting is 
insignificant. 

Group Within the first 
year  

 Within the 
second year 

 Within the 
third–fifth year 

 
After five years 

        

At 31 December 2012        

Borrowings  149,749  78,523  388,555  172,929 

Finance lease liabilities 331  47  -  - 

Trade and other accounts payable 160,833  936  936  1,872 

        

At 31 December 2011        

Borrowings  72,009  89,998  435,579  225,086 

Finance lease liabilities 596  322  -  - 

Trade and other accounts payable 133,681  312  936  2,808 
 
 

Company Within the first 
year  

 Within the 
second year 

 Within the 
third–fifth year 

 
After five years 

        

At 31 December 2012        

Borrowings 139,335  77,148  381,432  172,929 

Trade and other accounts payable 149,492  936  936  1,872 

        

At 31 December 2011        

Borrowings  70,840  89,998  435,579  225,086 

Trade and other accounts payable 120,172  312  936  2,808 
 
Interest rate risk 
 
Revenues and cash flows of the Group companies are affected by fluctuations in market interest rates as all borrowings of 
the Group companies were subject to variable interest rates as of 31 December 2012. Increase in interest rate risk is mostly 
affected by non-current borrowings. All borrowings bear variable interest rates which are linked with LIBOR-EUR. Intervals 
of repricing of interest rates are disclosed in Note 19.  
 
If interest rates on withdrawn balances of borrowings of the Group companies had been higher/lower by 1 p.p., net profit 
for the year 2012 would have been LTL 2,425 thousand (2011: LTL 1,676 thousand) lower/higher. If interest rates on 
withdrawn balances of borrowings of the Company had been higher/lower by 1 p.p., net profit for the  year 2012would have 
been LTL 2,380 thousand (2011: LTL 1,674 thousand) lower/higher. 
 
Foreign exchange risk 
 
The Group companies conduct certain transactions that are denominated in foreign currencies. This leads to the 
concentration of foreign exchange risk. 
 
With effect from 1 February 2002, the exchange rate of the litas is pegged to the euro. As a result, changes in exchange 
rates of the euro do not have a significant impact on the Company’s equity.  As of 31 December 2012, the Company/Group 
did not have any significant assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than the litas and the euro.  
 
The Group companies did not use any financial instruments to manage foreign exchange risk. 
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36 Financial risk management (continued) 
 
Securities price risk  
 
The Company has direct control over the subsidiaries and take part in management of associates (Note 7). In the 
Company’s separate financial statements, investments in these companies are accounted for at acquisition cost, which is 
adjusted by impairment losses, if any. Investments in associates in the Group’s consolidated financial statements are 
accounted for using the equity method by adjusting their carrying amounts by the Group’s share of profits or losses. The 
increase/decrease in the carrying amount of these investments directly affects the financial results of the Group. The 
Company impacts the results of its subsidiaries and associates by taking part in the formation of the management policy of 
operations of these companies. 
 
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
 
The Group’s and the Company’s principal financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value are trade and other 
accounts receivable, trade and other accounts payables, non-current and current borrowings.  
 
The fair value of the Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is based on the prices in an active 
market.  
 
Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged or at which a mutual liability could be 
set off between knowledgeable parties in an arm's length transaction willing to buy/sell an asset or to set off a mutual 
liability. Fair value is determined on the basis of quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and option pricing 
models as appropriate. 
 
The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial assets and 
liabilities: 

 
 The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, current trade and other accounts receivable, current trade and 

other accounts payable and current borrowings approximates their fair value.  

 
 The fair value of non-current borrowings is based on the quoted market price for the same or similar loan or on 

the current rates available for loan with the same maturity profile. The fair value of a non-current borrowing 
bearing variable interest rates approximates its carrying amount, provided that the margin on such loan 
corresponds to margins currently prevailing in the market.  
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37   Off-balance sheet commitments and contingencies 
 
Guarantees issued and received 
 
In 2005, the Company guaranteed under the guarantee agreements the fulfilment of 25 per cent of liabilities of Nordic 
Energy Link AS to Nordic Investment Bank (LTL 45,750 thousand) and to SEB Eesti Uhispank AB (LTL 26,759 thousand). 
The guarantees will expire upon a full repayment of the loans by the associate to the respective banks, i.e. on 15 March 
2014 and 15 September 2014, respectively. The Group/Company accounted for these guarantees at fair value. The carrying 
amount of the guarantee obligations amounted to LTL 259 thousand as of 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011: LTL 472 
thousand). The Group/Company did not account for any additional provisions related to these guarantees, since 
management expects that the associate will fulfil its liabilities to the banks. 
 
In order to ensure the fulfilment of obligations, the power exchange participants are required to present to BALTPOOL UAB 
the bank guarantee on the fulfilment of their obligations not later than 10 (ten) working days before the commencement 
date of the trading session at the power exchange and/or provide a cash deposit. As of 31 December 2011, a cash deposit 
provided by the Company to BALTPOOL UAB amounted to LTL 500 thousand. In 2012 as a result of change of market 
operator, the Company had no cash deposit provided to BALTPOOL UAB. As of 31 December 2011, the bank guarantees 
presented to BATLPOOL UAB amounted to LTL 5,400 thousand.  
 
As of 31 December 2012, the support letter was submitted by the Company to Danske Bank A/S Lithuania branch in 
relation to a guarantee of LTL 3,000 thousand and an overdraft limit of LTL 15,000 thousand that were granted to Energijos 
Tiekimas UAB by the Bank.  
 
On 18 April 2011, the Company entered into guarantee agreement with Nordea Bank Finland Plc Lithuania branch in relation 
to issue of guarantee for the amount of EUR 1,766 thousand under the guarantee agreement concluded by Kauno 
Energetikos Remontas UAB on 18 January 2007. Under this agreement, Lietuvos Energija AB guaranteed an appropriate 
fulfilment of obligations of Kauno Energetikos Remontas UAB, but not in excess of EUR 1,766 thousand.   
 
As of 31 December 2012, the guarantee was granted by the Company to Nordea Bank Finland Plc Lithuania branch to 
provide an irrevocable and unconditional guarantee in favour of Kauno Energetikos Remontas UAB for the payment of EUR 
1,883 thousand upon the initial written request by the Bank. 
 
As of 31 December 2012, the Company and Nordea Bank Finland Plc had an agreement on bank guarantee in relation to 
EUR 1,281 thousand guarantee issued by the Bank, the amount of which may be increased up to EUR 1,500 thousand upon 
the Company‘s request. The beneficiary of the guarantee is General Electric International Inc. 
 
Operating lease 
 

The subsidiary Technologijų ir Inovacijų Centas UAB has operating lease agreements for motor vehicles and administrative 
premises. These agreements provide for the right to change the scope of services rendered, as well as to terminate the 
agreement with at least 3 months prior notice to the lessee without incurring any additional financial obligations. 
Infrastructural assets (data centers, technological facilities, infrastructure and communication channels) necessary for the 
provision of IT services are leased from related parties and third parties: 
 

  

2012   2011  

Lease of infrastructure and related expenses 
 

6,917 5,178 

Lease of premises and related expenses 
 

4,122 2,391 

Lease of motor vehicles and fuel expenses 
 

1,193 1,282 

  
Lease expenses of infrastructure mostly comprise lease of optical fibre from LITGRID AB. The agreement is valid from 29 
April 2011 to 29 April 2026, however, the Company has a right to terminate it with prior notice of 12 months. 
 
 
Tax audits 
 
The Tax Authorities may at any time during 5 successive years after the end of the reporting tax year inspect the books and 
accounting records and impose additional taxes or fines. The Group‘s/Company‘s management is not aware of any 
circumstances that might result in a potential material liability in this respect. 
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38 Capital management 
 
Capital consists of the total amount of equity reported in the statement of financial position. 
 
The Group and the Company manage the capital structure and make adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic 
conditions and the operating risks. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group and the Company may adjust the 
dividend payment to shareholders, repay capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made concerning 
risk management objectives, policies or processes during the periods ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011. 
 
According to the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania, the Group’s and the Company’s equity must be not less 
than ½ of the amount of the authorised share capital. No other external capital requirements have been imposed on the 
Group and the Company. As of 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Group and the Company were not in breach 
of the above-mentioned requirement. 
 
 
39   Events after the end of the reporting period 

 
For the purpose of implementing Lithuanian Government‘s Resolution No. 141 of 13 February 2013 On the transfer of state-
owned shares, and amendment to the Lithuanian Government‘s Resolution No. 826 of 4 July 2012 On the establishment of 
a private limited liability company and investment of state-owned capital, on 26 February 2013 4,067,163,632 ordinary 
registered intangible shares of Visagino Atominė Elektrinė UAB with the nominal value of LTL 1 each (that had been 
formerly owned under the title by state and had been held in trust by the Ministry of Economy) were transferred to the 
Ministry of Finance, which entitle to 100% votes during the general shareholders meeting of Visagino Atominė Elektrinė 
UAB. Currently, the ownership interest of Visagino Atominė Elektrinė UAB in Lietuvos Energija AB is 96.13%. 
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